CHAFF-MILLS IN MELBOURNE'S WEST

AN INDUSTRIAL SITES STUDY

FEBRUARY 1987

Researched and Compiled by
Gary Vines
for Melbourne's Living Museum

of the West Incorporated




ISBN number O 9589812 80




~t

CHAFF~MILLS IN MELBOURNE 'S8 WEST o

AN INDUSTRIAL SITES STUDY

CHAFF-MILLS IN MELBOURNE 'S WEST

AN INDUSTRIAL SITES STUDY

FERRUARY 1987

Researched and Compiled by
Bary Vines

for Melbourne’'s Living Museum of the West Incorporated

Funded by the Ministry fotr Conservation Forests and Lands

Coverr photograph: Workers at Schutt and Barrie’'s
chaffmill, West Footscray. about 1915.
(courtesy Mrs. G. Walters,)



"ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

This history of chaff-milling is the product of the farmers,
workers and others who have passed on their knowledge to me so
that I could put it together. All of these people must be thanked
for sharing their memories, knowledge and experience. Raoy Davis
and C. W. MNash of Werribee, Leoc and Val Tarieton and Fam and
Eernie Trethowan of Melton, Ron Robinson of Truganina, Jack
Findlatsr and fathew Matich of Footscray, as well as all of those
. listed in the sources at the end of this paper.

I must also thank Angelo Tsardakis of V Line, Martin Hallett of
the Museum of Victoria, the staff of the Latrobe Library, Faul
fFusssel of the Department of Weights and Measures and members of
the variouws historical societies in the West, for their help in
tracking down the scattered documentary sources on chaff-mills.

Gary Vines, 17.3%.87

ii



CONTENTS page
ACKNOWL.EDGEMENTS ii
LIST OF ILLUSTRATIONG iv
GLOSSARY OF TERMS ‘ vi
1. INTRODUCTION, RACKGROUND TO THE STUDY 1
2 OUTLINE OF CHAFF-MILLING I
2.1 What is Chaff and why is it used? 5
2.2 Descwiption’qF the processes involved 4
2.% Context of chaff production. 13
2.4 lLocational factors. 15
T NARRATIVE HISTORICAL DESCRIFTION OF
CHAFF-MILLING IM THE WEST 18
Zel Chart of mills 19
.2 Early period in Melbourne city 20
5.3 Chatf-milling in the West: 1870s to 1980s 21
Z.3%.1 Formation 1870s to 1700s 21
A2 Peak 19005 to 1940s an
I.5.5 Decline 12405 to 1960s 25
Z.3.4 New Structure 1960s to 1980s 24
4. INDIVIDUAL CHAFF-MILL HISTORIES 27
5.  ARCHAEOLOGY 48
& . SUGRESTIONS F(R FURTHER RESEARCH 52
AFFENDIX A Flans of Chatf-mills with sidings. =S4
AFFENDIX E List of chaff-millers in Victoria 65
from 1880.

AFFENDIX C Letter +rom C.W. Nash &7
APPENDIX D Albert Evans, ‘Working at Trethowan's Y=
chaff-mill, Melton 1232-4.°
QPPENDIX E Letter from Darnéhea Whitford &9
NOTES ANMD REFERENCES 72

79

H5OURCES

iit

-t



LIST OF ILLUSTRATIONS

Fitching hay at Trethowans chatf—-mill, Felton.
Leo Tarleton hav-making in the Rockbank area.

Drays ouwtside Schutt and Barrie’'s chaff-mill,
Footscray.

Flow chart of machine%y at Trethowan's chaff-mill,
Melton.

Steam boiler at Trethowan s chatt-mill, relton.
1987, '

Cli++ and Hunting chat+—cutter at Trethaowan's
chaff-mill, Melton. 1987.

Cha++ slevator to riddles at Trethowan's chaff-
mill, Meltaon, 1%87.

Baggers at Trethowan s chaff-mill, Fielton., 1987.

Under—~floor drive-shatt, belts and pulleys at
Trethowan's chaftf-mill, PFMelton, 1987.

The workplace of the chatf—-mill hand at
Trethowan’'s chaftf-mill, Felton, 1987.

Site of Diggers Rest chaff-mill showing proximity
to the Bendigo railway line, 1987.

Locations of known chaff—mills in Melbourne' s
Wastern Regiaon, 1BY0s to 1980s,

Chart of chaf+-mills in Melbourne s West 1870s to
19805, '

An example of Clif+ and Bunting's stationary
chaff-cutting machine, at Trethowan's chatf-mill,

Melton., 1%87.

Advertisement {for Ward and Mokenzie, Nth. Melb. and
Melton., 19773,

Advaertisement for Trethowans chaff-mill, Melton,
1973,

Schutt and Barrie’'s Weighbridge, opposite the
site of their chaftf—-mill, West Footscray, 1287.

Diggere Rest chaff-mill about 1920,

iv

page

n

104

11

16

17

i%




Fearce’'s 1886 chaff+-mill, Hacchus Marsh.

Earrie' s, later Ward's chaff-mill, Melton, =arly
this century.

‘Rallway turnout to site of Rockbank chaff-mill.
Trethowan's Chaf+-mill, relton, 1967.

Site of Sydenham chatf-mill, L9987, Now occupied by
a garden nursery, note the siding in the
foreground.

Farrie's Travelling chaff-cutter )
Travelling chatf—-ocutting fteam near Toolern Vale.

Impressions of sleepers from the siding near
Ward s chatf-mill, Helton, 19B7.

Fearce s chatf-mill, Maddingley, 1987.

4z

43

45

47

49



LIST OF ILLUSTRATIONS

Fitching hay at Trethowans chaff-mill, FMeliton.
lleo Tarleton hay—-making in the Rockbank area.

Drays outside Schutt and BRarrie’'s chaff-mill,
Footscray.

Flow chart of machinévy at Trethowan’'s chaff-mill,
Melton.

S5team boiler at Trethowan s chaff-miil, Melton.
1987.

Clif+ and Bunting chatt-cutter at Trethowan's
chaff-mill, Meltom. 1987.

Cha++ elevator to riddles at Trethowan s chaff-
mill, Melton, 1987.

Eaggers at Trethowanm's chat+-mill, Melton, 1987.

Urder—floor drive-shatt, belts and pulleys at
Trethowan's chatf-mill, Melton, i987.

The workplace of the chaff-mill hand at
Trethowan's chatf-mill, Melton, 1787.

Eite of Diggers Rest chaff—-mill showing proximity
to the Bendigo railway line, 1987.

Locaticns of known chaf+—-mills in Melbhourne's
Western Region, 18705 to 19BOs.

Chart of chaff-mills in Melbourne s West 1870s to
1980s. '

An esample of Clif+ and Bunting s stationary
chaff-cutting machine, at Trethowan's chaff-mill,
Melton, 1987.

Advertisement +for Ward and Mckenzie, Nth., Melbk. and
Melton, 1973.

Advertisement for Trethowans chaff-mill, Melton,
1973,

Schutt and Barrie’'s Weighbridge, opposite the
site of their chaff-mill, West Footscray, 1287.

Diggers Rest chaftf-mill about 1220,

iv

page

Ln

1

11

16

17

1%




GLOSSARY OF TERMS

bags
baggies
baggers
base
bins

cavers

chad+
Crespers

diray

elevators

face
tallow

tfeader
fodder
hay

hydraulic

h ey
knife
lucern
riddles
sample

sheat
siding

stack
stook

straw
turnout

-string used to tie sheaves of hay

—the men who work on the baggers and sew bags.
~machines for filling bags with cha+t+.

~fixed blade against which chat+ knives cut

-or hoppers, used for storing cut chaff before mixing or
bagging )

-shredded pieces of straw which are returned to the
cutter .

—any chopped dried fodder crop

-ar rollers, part of chaff-cutter which guides straw

into knives

~four wheel horse—drawn waggon

—chutes with cleated belts or spiral screws used to
raise hay or chat+t

—part of chaff-cutter up to which chatt is fed

—-method of resting field by ploughing but not cropping
for one oFr more seasons

—petson who feeds the hay inte the chaff-cutter

—any crop grown and processed tor animal feed

~—dried crop which retains its seed

—describes a manutacturing process, not a type of hay

—cutting blade of chaff-cutter

-clover—-like plant used for fodder

~machine for separating good chaff from dust and cavers

—a sample of chaf+ for testing quality, also a good
even quality

-bundle of hay tied in the middle

-section of rail track connecting mill to main railway
line

—gpecially built pile of hay,
molisture out

—number of sheaves stood together in field to dry

—diried crop with seed removed

-part of rall track with points leading off to siding

thatched to keep the
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1. INTRODUCTION, BACKGROUND TO THE STUDY

This study of chaff-mills in Melbourne’'s West results trom a
special project grant made by the Victorian Ministry for
Conservation, Forests and Lands to Melbourne’'s Living Museum of
the West. The grant was part of a Government program designed to
assist groups which cover a broad range of nature, conservation
and cultural heritage interests.

In this project we undertook to look at chaff-mill sites and
bluestone guarries in Melbourne’'s Wesit. Both are part of the
cultural heritage of the region but alsoc relate to the local
environment and the special characteristics of the land and the
climate on this side of Melbourne. The Museum had already been
involved in studies of historic industrial sites such as the old
Angliss meatworks site at Footscray and the Massey Ferguson site,
once the Sunshine Harvester Works, at Sunshine. The gquarries
project will result in a separate report.

Cur Museum was introduced to chaff-mills by members of the Melton

and District Historical Society. A summary prepared by Leo
Tarleton was of immense value in praviding an overview of chaft-

mills in the Melton district and the links between them. A visit

te Trethowan's chaff-mill enabled us to look over thes last
operating chaff-mill and a tour of the district introduced us to
the local farms.

As part of the Living Museum of the West's philosophy of
involving the leocal community in the process of history
recording, contacts were made with many individuals throuah

leatliets distributed at festivals and the Museum s own travelliing

displays, and an article published by the Western Times. The
response fraom this has been wonderful and more information and

offers pf information were received thamn could be incerporated in

the study in the short time available. Several new cantacts were
provided by each of the people who conta:ted the Museum.

We have been fortunate to bave Gary Vines as the ressarcher for
this study. Gary is a local resident who 1s also an ingdustrial
archaeologist. His expertise in archaeoloqgy and his enthusiasm
and commitment to the study have enabled him to locate and piece
together fragments of the story that were previously missing.
The Study aims to collect and correlate data from oral,
documentary and archaeclogical sources in order to assess the
historical significance of the industry and describe the
development of the specific sites and processss connected with
the chaff-mill industry. This has been done within the general
theme of the relationship between rural and wrban industry in
Melbourne before the rise of the car.

The study takes the form of a brief outline of the chat+-milling
industry, its importance in 1%th and early 20th century
gronomics, and general historical trends, followed by detailed




outlines of selected chaff-mills and chaff-milling companies.
Uther sections are included on the present day remains of chaff-—
mill sites in the region and suggestions for further research.

A record of the people and places associated with the industry
has been compiled through documentary research, oral history
recording with ex—workers, farmers and others invelved with the
mills, photography of present sites and copying of old

photographs.

The material gathered in the study—- photographs, audio tapes,
plans, documents, i= being catalogued and will be available in
the Museum’'s Resource Centre. Local people and others may wish to

take the study further.

Maelbourne's Western Region has a large number of industrial sites
of major significance. The chaff-mill sites are the first sites
to be listed in & Regional Sites Register being developed by
Melbourne's Living tuseum ot the West. Hopefully, this study will
encourage and assist further documentation amd research on our

heritage and our environment.

Glwen Faord
Museum Director

[



2. OUTLINE OF CHAFF-MILLING
2.1 What is chaff and why is it used? . :

Before the Second World War, chaff was the main fuel of transport I
in the city and country, powering horse-drawn buses, delivery ;
vans, and farm implements. ‘

Chatf was one of the main feeds +for working horses for sevetral |
reasons associated with the economics of feeding and production. i
Along with oats, maize, barley and wheat it provided a nutritious

feed in a short time. Very necessary for a working horse. As a \
working horse might be required to work most of the day and take §
its meals in the same period as the farmer or teamster, a short ‘
nutritious feed was essential. Oats and other grain provided the
nutritious component of the food while straw, grass ot 'Cockey’
chaftf (chaff without grain or seedheads) provided the “roughage’
component. The cutting of the chaff into short lengths, usually
around 174 to 1/2 an inch did not increase the digestibility of
the hay o+ straw, nor make it more nutritious, but it did reduce
waste in feeding and shorten the time the horse took to sat and
also reduced the energy expended by the horse in eating. (1)

Oats were the most common crop cut to chaff but a variety of
other grasses and legumes were also used including wheat, barley,
pasture grasses and lucern. Straw or wheat chaff were
insufficient on their own, even for horses which did no heavy
worlk but they helped to supply bulk in the intestines and so
aided digestion. A typical daily allowance for working horses
may have comprised 16 pounds of chaff, 7 of oats, 7 of maize, 2
of beans, and Z of bran, although there could be considerable
variation in this including leaving out the maize, beans and/or
bran altogether. (2)

In general usage, chaff could refer to any ctrop which had been
chopped into short pieces (less than half an inch) after
harvesting and drying. However, a distinction was made between
hay chaff and straw chaff as well as oaten and wheaten chaft.

Hay is loosely defined as a fodder crop which retains its grain

or sesd heads, while straw is the opposite. The Chaff and Stock

Feed Act of 190%, however, sought to define the terms in a legal

sense and to standardise the definitions. "Hay’ ' meant “any dried i
cereal, legume or grass from which the grain or seed has not been
removed ', while ’‘straw’ meant ‘any dried cereal, legume or grass

fraom which the grain or seed has been removed by artificial

action, or which has been stripped or threshed.

But, as the debate in Farliament showed, the definition was
pbscured due to the problems of producing an even sampie of
chaff. Under field conditions it might have been neccessary to
harvest before all of the seed had ripened or after the nats

had aver-ripened and dropped all of their seed, Under the Act,
hay chaf+ made from pats which had lost their seed before harvest
would be technically straw chaf+ and the selier would be breaking




the law. The act also had a provision for laboratory analysis of
protein content but did not and could not défine a minimum level
again due to the variability of samples over different seasons

and regions. (3)

Hay was also fed to stock without being cut and when fed to race-
norses a short variety of bundling hay was preferred, which had a
high proportion of oats to straw. (4}

Cow chaff was an inferior gquality of chaftf, either lacking in
praotein or discoloured by moisture and which horses would refuss.
There was not as big a demand for .cow chaftf, so much of the poorer
hay went to waste or was mided with good hay to produce a better

sample.

Fitching hay at Trethowans chaff-mill, Melton. Fhoto. F.
Haffenda=n.

2.2 Description of the processes involved.

Growing hay.

Leo Tarleton of Melton, has told us that hay is generally planted
as any other crop, and is sown between April and June, and cut in
December. The harvest used to start the day before Melbourne Cup
Day and resume the day after when the farmers returned (less

their betting money one assumes) but today the seasons are about

a month later. (3



A fortnight of drying weather was required for the cut hay to be ]
ready to stack, but this varied acecording to the weathé&r and the !
number of hands available to do the job. Roy Davis of -Werribee )
employed about siy men during harvest and it would take about six ’ i
weeks to finish zutting, after which they would carry straight on ;
with stacking. (&) Excessive rain while the hay was lying in the 1
field or even in the stack could discolour the hay and reduce its
nutrients but the main problem came from the dark parts going |
thtough the chatf and spoiling the appearance (horses are rather 5
fussy eaters and refuse such feed). Weeds in the crop are also
detrimental %o the feed and sometimes hay infested with a noxious j
weed such as Hoary COress was probhibited from sale to prevent !
its spread. (7) '

leo Tarleton hay-making on his farm in the Rockbank area.
Fhoto, courtesy The Age.

Carting.

Carting of hay between farm and mill was done by farmers, chaff-
mill company emplovees and specialist contractors alike. In the
third catagory was C.W. Nash who carried sheaf hay from after
World War 11, to Geelong and Cressy at Lara, E.C. Robertson, F.H.
Oldis and Thompson Brothers at Werribee, Wards and what later
became Trethowans at Melton, Schutt and Barries in Footscray, the
Sydenham mill, and Jack Dallwitz in Newmarket. M+ Mash cartied
hay “from as close as St Albanes, Deer Fark and Truganina, and as
far as Inverleigh, EBallarat and Trentham. ™ (8)

At Ward's mill in Melton, ‘wagons and drays began to line up at
2 A.M. to offlopad hay which left Melton as chaftf for local and
expart markets. Machinery was run by steam using timber brought

o




down in cartleoads of six or seven tons from Breakneck and
illumination for the night shift was provided by hurricane
lanterns., (9 °

%ﬁ&g E'

Drays outside Schutt and Barrie’'s chaff-mill, Footscray. courtesy
Footscray Historical Society.

WOREKE IN THE MILL.

fecording to Mr Mash of Werribeey "The men who warked in the mill
were tough old blokes who spent most of their working life thers.
I doubt if many of them would be left. They were much older than
me and I am 73%.° (1)

Steaming.

Before chaff could be cut efficiently it had %o have the right
moisture content. Chaff which has been cut from hay that is too
dry, is dusty and powdery and produces many cavers {torn shreds of
nay which clog the cutters). (1l1) Sometimes the right moisture
content was acheived by cutting it at just the right time after
harvest, usuwally done on farms. Dtherwise the moisture had to be
added. Leo Tarleton did this by damping the hay down with water
the night before, (12Z) but the method used in the mills was to

put the hay through stsam chambers.

The steamers were of two types, intermittent and continuous. The
intermittent steamers required the hay to be loaded, steamed and
then removed while in the continuous type the hay travelled along
& conveynor through the chamber where valves were opened and live
steam was sprayed on the hay as it passed. Such a system was used
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at Schutt and Barrie’'s but if the conveyor stopped while the
steam valves were still open,y, the man pulling, the hay aut and
feeding the cutter could receive severe butns. (13)

The steam had to be a ‘dry’ steam to control the moisture
effectively, and all the mills had steamers of one or other type.
The heat from the st2am chambers and boilers made the place

unbearably hot, even in winter.

Steam boiler at Trethowan'’'s chaff-mill, Melton. 1987. Photo G.
Vines.

A test of the quality of the cut chatf was made by smelling the
chatf, (it should have a rich but not mouldy smell) and taking a
handfull and squeezing it. If it is & little bit prickly and =ome
pieces stick to the hand, it is right., The final test was to give
it to the horse. ‘The horse is the judge’ is a common remark from
chatf-millers and farmers alike. (14)

Cutting.

The thaff-cutter basically comprises a fly-wheel to which are
fitted two or more cutting knives, and a device to feed the hay

up to the knives. The knives revolve at high speed and cut

against a fixed blade known as the ‘base’. The hay is fed inta

the knives by turning rollers and all is powersed from the steam ar

electric engine via drive belts.

Considering the age of the machines and the length of time they
pperated, breakdowns were surprisingly few. Repairs were usually
confined to replacing worn parts, bearings and other friction



LClis+ and Bunting chaff—-cutter at Trethowan’'s chaftf-mill, PMelton,
1287. FPhoto. G. Vines.

surfaces. Jack Findlater was maintenance foreman at Schutt and
Barrie’'s for many yaars and tells how he sometimes worked all
night to fix a major breakdown. These sometimes occcurred when
part of a reapetr (which might have come off during the harvest)
went through the cutters and smashed the machines. {(15)

Everyday maintenance involved sharpening and re-sstting. The
knives were sharpened every 20 minutes. In the older cutters,
this was done on the machine with a 12 inch mill bastard file but
when Cliff and Bunting brought out a machine with five concave
knives they were removed and sharpened on an emery wheel. While
one machine was being sharpened they would switch over to another
so that production was never halted. The base was sharpened once
a week and the machine re—set every night. while the iron rollers
were replaced every nine menths. Another common repair involved
running new white metal bearings into bearing shells on the steam
engine, drive shafts and cutters. (16)

The job of the feeder was to place the hay up to the rollers
ensuring it was always lapped so0 that sufficient hay went into
the cutter to keep the roller presure up and avoid preducing too
many cavers. Guards were sometimes fitted around the cutters and
belts but as they made the Jjob of replacing belts or changing
speads mope difficult, they were often left off.




Riddles and Mixing.

The riddles were used to separate the good chaf+ from the dust
and cavers and -were like large flat sieves which were shaiken
mechanically. Elevatora took the cavers back to the cutters and
the chaff to storage bins or baggers. The foreman or riddle man
regularly checked the chaff to make sure the machines were
working properly and the sample was of the right quality. The
bins or hoppers were usaed to store different qualities of cha+ff
which could then be mixed to produce a standard sample or a
specialty stock feed mix. j

Chatf elevator to riddles at Trethowan's chaff-mill, Melton, :
19287. Fhoto. B. Vines.

.Bagging. ; !

The bagging machines were designed tp fill two bags alternately
so that as one was filling, the other could be dropped down and ‘
sewn and a new empty bag put in its place. Due to the light g 1
weight and high bulk of chaff, spiral augers were used to press it : E
down into the bags and a system of weights used to regulate how
muech cha+f went in. 2% bags to a ton was the common measure in
the past and resulted in a bag weighing one cwt. Today 24 to Z5
bags to a ton is more common with some going as light as 27 to 28
bags per ton, even though the same prige 15 charged for a bag
regardless of the weight. (17)

Bags were sewn by hand and the sewer had o be fast or he would
not last in the job for very long. Even though the mill workers

10




were not paid piece—rates, the competition amongst them encouraged g
them to work fast so anyone who didn’'t keep up slowed the !
production. They had to work as a team. (18)

Baggers at Trethowan's chaff-mill, Melton, 1987. Photo. G.
Vines.

Engines.

Before the 1920z or Z0s nearly all mills were steam—powered,
uswually having a gingle engine of sufficient horse-power to drive
all the cutters, riddles, elevators, baggers, and any other
ancillary equipment such as a generator or work shop tools.

Wide leather or canvas belts transmitted power {from the engine to
machinery via drive shafts and pulleys for sach machine.

Sometimes several different size pullevs could be Ffitted to

change gearing and speed. This system resulted in a complex and
dangerous work—-place with fast-moving belts, usually unguarded and
liable to break or fly off. Since stopping one pulley to replace

a belt involved stopping the whole mill, belts would be thrown
pack on while moving, thus increasing the danger. (199

Electricity eventually replaced the steam engines but at
Footseray and Melton the drive system of pulleys and belts was
retained and & single large electric motor powered the mill. The
alternative to this was for separate motors to be fitted to each
machine as was done with the 'Big Eutter’ at Footscray.

11
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Under—+Flpor drive—shatt, belts and pulleys at Trethowan’'s chaff—
mill, Melton, 1987. Fhoto. G. Vines.

Conditions.

Work in the mills was hot, dusty, noisy, cramped, strenuous and
generally dangerous. The hours at Schutt and Barrie’'s were from
7230 AM. to 5.00 .M. Monday to Friday and 7.30 A.M. to i1.49
A.M. on SBaturday, although extra hours might have to be put in to
meet orders. Two whistles, five minutes apart, signalled getting
down to work and starting up but only one whistle was needed to
finish. A seven minute smoko was allowsd in the morning and 3/4

of an hour for dinner.

The fireman/engine driver had to have steam up by 7.20 and so was
the first to arrive and the last to leave. While work may have
been hard to come by at times, the mills do not seem to have
closed down during slack times. At Schutt and Barrie’'s, work was
found for the men stacking or cleaning up or even cutting
thistles up near the Farwan mill. Sometimes a worker might be
given a week off. (20)

You learned the job for yourself by watching and giving a hand.
For- the men who stayed a long time (and many spent their whole
working lives in the mills) progress would be made from cleaning

up, %o feeding the cutter, to bagging, and possibly to maintenance

or even foreman.

The workere took no precsutions against the noise or dust and now
some complain of deatness or have retired with iung camplaints.

12



After breathing in the chatf dust all day at Schutt and EBarrie's
vou would ‘go over the road to the Rising Sun and get a good beer
into you and then could you spit it up.’ (21D

Accidents were all too common and many mill workers lost a finger
or hand or worse. Without much space it was necessary to duck
under machinery and sometimes bend double to get past drive
belts. The feeder had only a small platform a few feet squaire to
worlk on.

The workplace of the chaff-mill hand at Trethowan's chaff-mill,
Melton, 1987. FPhoto. G. Vines.

Fires were a constant problem as demonstrated by the number of
mills ending their lives by burning down. Over-heated bearings
often started chaff smouldering in the bing or around the mill
and would require flooding fto extinguish.

Wages were reasonable by the standards of the post-war years, but
low enough early in the century for a special wages board to be
set up in 1909 to investigate what were regarded as sweating
shops. Some mills paid 30 to 40 shillings per week and as low as
4 to & shillings per day in the case of Jahn Barwise. (Z2)

2,5 Context of chaff production.

Hay For chaff has always been Jjust one part of the farmers’
production in Melbourne's Western Region, but it has been of
considerable importance. In the post-war years, when farmers
would have half their land umder crop and the ather halt fallow,

13




the view from the top of Mt Kororoit would have been of: a
patchwork of fallow fields, ripening hay and armies of.stooks.
Today, only a few farmers in Melton still grow hay and. fallowing
is a thing of the past.

The price of hay has +fluctuated dramatically from a low of around
30 shillings to 14 pounds per ton at the outbrealk of World War
II. 8 pounds was a high price following the first war and Ron
Robinson was getting I pounds 7/& & ton for his chaff hay around
the time of the Second World War. (23}

Bince chaf+ provided fuel For horses and horses were the main
form of transport well into the 20th century, Melbourne’'s Western
Region can justifiably be regarded as the Middle East of Victoria
in the sense that it provided the fuel to keep our transport
moving.

The big users of chatf were the transport companies, the
bakeries, dairies., breweries and other delivery agents, and the
farmers. Many farms grew and processed their own stock feeds, but
still much of the Werribee mills’ preoduction was sold to the
local area with the remainder being sent to Melbourne and
interstate produce stores. Roy Davis, for example kept 14 horses
pn His farm and even when he purchased a tractor in 1934 he
retained a team of horsss for gathering stoaoks, as they would
stop and go on command, unlike a tractor. {(24)

Bottle-Covers

Other small but significant users of hay were the botitle-cover
manufacturers and packing industry.

The mills at Sydenham, Footscray and Newmarket (and probably
elsewhere) manufactured these covers which were used in packing
bottles, especially beer bottles, until shortly after the Second
World War. The change from crates to cartons as the main form of
beer bottle packing was the main reason for the clesure of the
Newmarket mill. (25) The Sydenham mill uvsed S0 ton a wesk on
bottle covers, threshing the grain off the hay and selling it

separately. (24&)

Schutt and Barrie’'s mill in Footscray also produced bottle covers
according to J.VY. Farrow who carted hay to the milli. These ware
stitched on a machine and put around chemical and ink bottles to
ptrevent breakage during packing and transport. He recalls they
were commonly known as ‘french envelopes’ and were invented by a
M. Lewis from Malmeshury. (27)

Cha+f bags.

An industry closely associated with and to some extent dependent
on chaff-milling was the bag tirade. As new Jjute and hessian bags
had to come from India and were relatively expensive, a thriving
trade developed in cleaning and repairing second-hand chaff bags
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along with reconditioning of a variety ot stock +eed, produce,
chemical bags and sacks. Sometimes a bag could be repaired,
cleaned and re-used as many as seven times. Special cleaning
machines wetre developed locally for the iob and a competitive
market kept Mathew Matich and his somn in business in Footscray
for many years. (28)

Schutt and Bartrie bought bags from Matich and also +rom their own
customers, who would return their empties. The mill employed a
man full-time to mend bags, and they may have bought bags in
ordet to keep the customers coming back. (2%9)

2.4 Locational factors.

According to Tim Bhea of Bacchus Marsh, before the construction
ot the Fykes Creek dam only barley grass could be grown in the
Bacchus Marsh area. With the dam came irrigation and ‘the whole
place was sown down to lucern and lucern chaff-mills were
established...neatr the railway. ' (30}

In 1909 the State irrigation scheme in Bacchus Marsh started on a
small scale and resulted in 470 acres being watered, mostly tor
lucerne. In 1701 a total of nearly 1000 acres of lucern were
grown. This doubled by 1911 to over 2000 acres. The crop helped
to ensure a regular milk supply and guarantes the viability of
the manufactured milk industry which was then developing im
Bacchus Marsh at the time. {(31)

The climate of Melbourne s Western Region is ideally suived to
growing hay. The soil is sufficiently fertile and adeguate rain
falls, but most important, long, warm, dry summers allow the hay
to ripen and dry once it is cut. The hay in the Melton area was
renowned as the best in the country, as it was slow-growing due
to the laow rainfall and produced a very hard stem which would cuft
cleanly. (32) Its hardness was not always appreciated by the
chatf-cutters who had to re-sharpen the knives more often. (I353

By the early 20fth century many chaff-mills were located in
Melbourne ‘s Western Region to take advantage of the hay produced
there. MNearness to railways was a vital factor in placing a mill,
as trail was the only suitable form of transport for sending chafof
long distances. Drays were the only alternative before’ the
arrival of the motor vehicles, but trains were faster, cheaper
and had a far greater capacity. Chaff was usually sent to
Melbourne but also went to colntry areas and interstate. (347
Likewise, hay was usually bought from the local area where
cartage costs would be lowest, but if the local crop was poor or
insufficient to meet demand hay could be brought in from country
areas and even interstate. (Z5) Chaff was even imporited from
South Africa at one stage. (2é&)



Site of Diggers Rest chaff-mill showing proximity to the Eendigo
railway line, 1987. Fhoto. G. Vines.
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I NARATIVE HISTORICAL DESCRIFTION OF CHAFF—HILLiNB IN
MELBOURNE ‘8 WEST.

3.1 Chart of mills

\

The following chart gives an cutline of the periods of operation
and the changes of ouwnership of the chaff-mills which operated in
Melbourne's Western Region from the 1870s to today and should bhe
consulted along with the individual chaff-mill histories in
section 4.
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3.2 Early period in Melbourne city

Records of the earliest chaff—mills in Melbourne have not been
found. For the first years of the Fort Fhillip settlement it is
clear that stock—-feed would have had to be imported along with
all other commodities. Once the first hay crops had been
harvested, chatf could be cut with hand operated chaff-cutters,
which most farmers would have eventually obtained. Much of
Melbourne's stock feed was imported in the first few decades of
the settlement although natural pastures were freely available
‘and thus would have provided the bulk of focod for horses and

cstock. (37)

The first manufacturers of stockfeed were establiched in what is
today the central business district of Melbourne and produced
chaff as part of a general produce trade.

1868 was the first year in which ‘Chaff Cutters’ were listed

as a separate trade catagory in the Victorian Directories. In
previocus yeare they are listed under ‘Corn Factors and Grain
Merchants’' or ‘Corn and Hay Dealers’ both of which include
businesses which were not cha+f cutters. It is evident from this
that chaff-cutting was not a specizalist or so widespread
occupation to warrant separate listing in the directories.
Srouping them with the produce dealers suggecsts it was a small
trade at the time.

In the 18&0s, the chaff cutters and other stock feed suppliers
wets generally located in Flemington, MNorth Melbourne and the

City.

By 1870 there were four chaff cutting firms in the city and
others in Flemington, Frahran, 5t. Kilda and Collingwoogd and by
1877 a clear trend had developed for chaff-mills to be
centralized in one area. Most were located in the Hotham area,
Horth Melbourne and Carlton. This area was close to the old Hay
Market which was on the site of the preszent hospital at the
junction of Royal Farade and Flemington Road. The Fig and Cal+f
Matrkets were also located nearby. MNearness to the main stock feed
market in Melbourne was clearly a major influence in chaftf-mill
location at this time.

The two main manufacturers ot chaff-cutting machinery in Victoria
werre Cliff and Bunting and John Buncle and Sons and were also
located in MNorth Melbourne. The latter company was established in
1854 and in 1905 a newspaper report claimed it was ‘the original
designers and makers of chaff-cutiters and has been associated
with this class of implement for S1 years.’ The company had also
won 650 gold and silver medals and first class awards to that
date. They produced 15 different models of travelling chaff-
cutters up to a machine with 14 inch feed reollers and a capacity
for S0 tons per day. Their machines were noted for their seldf
adjusting knife wheels which enabled very accurate and efficient
cperation and also for their all-round technical excellence. (38)
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fn example of Cliff and Bunting’'s stationary chaff-cutting
machine, at Trethowan’'s chaff-milil, Melton, 1%B7. Fhoto. G.

Vines.

By the end of the 19th century there were chaff-mills operating
in many country towns all over the state. A selected list of some

of these is included in Appendix Z.

In 188% there were 159 chaff-millers listed in Melbourne, still
concentrated in the Haymarket area but also developing in suburbs
arnd the fringes of Melbourne. Until 190Z it is difficult to get
an accurate idea of the milis working in Victorian country areas
but they were wide—~spread and growing in number. (see Appendix &

.5 Chaff-milling in Melbourne's West: 1870s to 1980s

3.%.1 Formation 18708 to 1900s

The 1280s were also the time that the first mill in what has
become the Western Region of Melbourne was established. This was
William Eastwood’'s mill in South EStreet, bAscot Vale. Eastwood and
fiis brother also had a mill and store at the top end of Elizabeth
Street, near the Hay Market and may have moved out to Ascot Vale
to be close to the railway. Along with the mill in South Street
they ran a produce store in Mount Alexander Road. They sold out
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to Crinnion Brothers in 1889 and the latter firm continued
cutting chatf untill 1714 .

Ancother mill, Fraser and Thomas’'s, was opened in the same area in
1889, while in fFootscray, H.E. Gilmour esrected a mill in Hopkins
Street. Gilmour also had a mill in Melbourne Rpad, Newport for a
few vears. His business was purchased by John Barwise in 1894,
who was & country miller from Eyneton.

The ftirst of the rural mills opensd in Bacchus Marsh in 1884 by
Feairce Brothers followed shortly after by Thomas Andrew’'s mill
beside the station. Fearce also moved to near the station in

1908,

A great spur to the growing of hay and cutting of chaff came with
the breaking up of the large estatses in the region, particularly
the Chirnside land at Werribee and Stauwghtons Exford estate and
Clarke s property near Melton. In Werribee 8000 acres wersa
purchased {for the Metropolitan Farm and leased to tenant farmers
who in 1894 grew 4,B50 tons of hay, and 12000 bushels of oats.
Other large tracts were sub—-divided and sold in Z to 200 acre
blocks. (2%9)

3.3.2 Peak 1200 to 1940s

In the first four decades of this century, hay was the fuel of
the transport industry. Like the ‘cil crisis’ of the 197035 we had
the chatf crisis of the late 1200s, when supply dwindled due to
drought, the price of hay and chaff shot up and disreputable
dealers tried to stretch their supplies by mising straw and other
matter, with the little good hay chaftf they could get. The ensuing
scandal got to Farliament and the Victorian Government was forced
to legislate to protect the supplies of fodder to Melbourne. This
resulted in the Chaff and Stock—feed Act of 1209, which
prohibited the mixing of hay chaff with any other substance and
attempted to define a quality standard for animal feed. It was
also an offence to possess or. to sell mixed chatf and as part of
the Act, provision was made far chemical analysis of feeds to
check their composition.

Further land sales in the 1900s brought even more land under
cultivation with the major crop being hay. In 1911 nearly 30 per
ceant of the cultivated land in the Western Region was sown to hay
with the largest amount grown in the Shires of Werribee and
Meltan. Hay had been a major crop for several decades in the 19th
century, but nearly doubled from 1201 to 1911. {(40)

The Staughton’'s Estate was producing nearly 5000 tons of hay a
yvear by the late 1900s and formed the basis for the development

o+ the chaff-mills in Melton. Barrie’s started in 1902 and Dixon’'s
a few years later. Many mills started up around the time of the
closer settlement of the wesetern plains. RBarrie’'s in Rockbank,
Austral Grain and FProduce in Farwan and Diggers Rest, Robertson
and Ison in Werribee. In all, eight new mills opened in the 11
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years between 1702 and 191% if we include Schutt and Barrie’'s
West Foptscray mill. All of these mills were on railway lines and
most constructed sidings so they could receive hay and dispatch
chat+ afficiently over any distance.

By 1923 there were at least 13 chaff-mills in the Region which
were dning good business and expanding .to satisfy a high demand.
Schutt and Barrie moved across Geelong Road in 191& to build a
larger mill and have better access to the railway (41), Ebbott
Febby, who had aguired Dixon’'s mill, added on extra bays to their
building and Fearce enlarged the Bacchus Marsh mill.

The industry at this time developed and diversified. Some mills
were operated by families who had gone into chaff-cutting as an
adjunct to their farming and often the mills were run by family
members. As many families were guite large there was little
trouble in finding labour among brothers and sons as did the
Rubinsomns and Thompsons.

Another type of mill ownership came from large stock and produce
firms such as GBlover Onians (which was run by and large by H.S5.FK.
Ward) and the Austral Grain and Froduce Company. Small and large
concerns wers able to co-edist in the lucrative market.

The cha+ff business was booming and couwld be said to have been at
its peak just before World War Ii. (42}

F.3.3 Decline 1940s to 1R240s

Between 1939 and 1942 no grain at all was grown in the Melton
area due to the very strong demand for chatf created by the war.
Some horses wetre still used by the army, but the shortage of
motor fuel resulted in the retention of horse—-drawn vehicles

and farm horses. From 12446 to 19250 hay was slowly replaced by
grain as the major crop, as the demand for hay declined. Packing
with straw was going out of fashion and bottles were no longer
packed with the straw covers. The post-war years were also a time
of labour shortages which greatly affected the very labour
intensive harvesting of hay. One man tcould operate a grain header
and bulk handling made grain growing even more labour-efficient,
but hay still regquired many hands for stooking and stacking. (43}

According to M Nash, the main reason for the mills fading out was
the loss of local hay once the bulk silos were built and so the
farmers turned to grain 44)

After the war, rail transport to the chaff-mills was severely
restricted due to a shortage of suitable rolling stock. The
Victorian Railways could not hire their large trucks to the
Melton mills in the 19230s because they were needed to haul brown
roal from the newly opened mines in Bacchus Marsh. As a result
Trethowans had to switch to road delivery, which meant buying a
truck and paying a driver and thus increasing their overheads

considerably. (450




At this time the bulk of the chaff was going to produce stores
and horse trainers in Melton and to dairy farms in Gippsland.
(ther developments which further reduced the viability of the
chaff-mills were the invention of the baler and hammermill,
(giving farmers a cheaper alternative to chaff for feeding their
cows), and the introduction of horse pellets and other processed
feeds for horgses. (446)

The=e post-wat years also saw the demige of the cart horse for
milk, bread, ice, and a variety of other delivery jobs.

More fires claimed some of the chaff-mills and with the depressed
markat at the time it was not financially viable to reconstruct
them. The Diggers Rest mill burned down in 1939 leaving its
pperators, the Robinson brothers, to abandon their partnership
with Schutt and Barrie and move to Melton. They were fortunate
that Ebbott Kebby were willing fto sell their mill so they could
remain in the chaff-cutting business for a while lonager.

Girigg and Bons, who had some time in the past ceased cutting
chaff, viosed their produce store in Ascot Vale and Fearce
Brothers closed down in 1244, after &0 vears in Bacchus Marsh.
Ward's mill in Rockbank closed around 1950, followed by Thompson's
in Werribee.

Schutt and Barrie’'s Farwan mill cloged about the same time as the
Diggers Rest mill leaving only their West Footscray works. By
1940 thetre were five mills in the region, Schutt and Barrie, the .
two Melton mills, E.C. Robertson in Werribee and the Sydenham
mill which was shortly to be bought by the Victorian 0Oat Fool and
stoppaed cutting cha+ff. '

ZuTF.4 New Structure 19605 to 1980s

Werribee lost its lazst chaff-mill in the late 1%40s and Schutt
and Barrie shut down in 1%&68. Ward’'s burnt down in a spectacular
fire in 1977 leaving only one mill opperating today. Trethowan's
managed to continue operating through several changes of
ownership in the S0s and &0s and today manages to keep afloat
hecause of a reliable source of hay from the few local hay
growetrs, and by diversiftying into a produce store.

The demand For cha+f+ has picked up in the last seven to ten
years, partly due ta the growth of racing and trotting studs in
the Meltomn area, (the 8Shire now has as its slogan ‘Thoroughbred
Country ). There has been a rise in the popularity of pony clubs
and a fashion among residents of the outer suburbs of Melbourne
to keep horses as pets. Subdivision of land for small hobby farms
has also brought more horses into the area.

The problem for farmers now is not to find a buyer for the hay
they produce but to find the labour to harvest it. The work can
be fatiguing and monotonous, and as it is seasonal, each year the
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task to find people to do it must be repeated. Various solutieons
have been tried including a mechanised stooker which picks up the
sheaves and sets the stonks on the ground leaving the two
operators to build the stooks under the shade of a tarpaulin. In
this way one stook can be erected every 70 seconds. This was
designed by Bernie Trethowan. (47} Others have employed

urnemp loyed youths +rom the local caravan patk and migrants from
the hostel in Maribyrnong. (48}

In the 1?9705 the demand for chaff was such that many farmers
planted hay again, paying up to %2 000 for a second hand
reaper/binder. Consequently there was an oversupply of hay and a
slump in the price the following year and their machines were
s0ld off for a third of their cost. No company is manufacturing
reapers in Australia today so the farmers are forced to keep 40
yvaar old machines going by making their pwn parts or cobbling
them togethsr from wrecked reapers. An impotrted reaper from
Holland was tried but was found unswitable far the local hard
hay. (49) !
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4. INDIVIDUAL CHAFF-MILL HISTORIES

Includes all known operators of chaffmills in the region:

Ascot Vale

William Eastwood was located on the north side of South Street
between Ascot Vale and Mt. Alexander Roads, & houses from Mt.
Alexander Road. (50) The business was described as ‘Hydraulic Hay
Fressers and Chaff-cutters’ and probably included other
stockfeeds., Up to 188% Eastwood Erothers, as they became known,
also had premises in Elizabeth Strpet North and Mount Alexander
Road.

Crinnion Bros.

I 188% Crinnion Brbethers took over the business. The Directories
at this time give a more detailed addres: as 16 and 20 South
Straet Ascot Vale. Number 16 was the residential address and the
original house can still be seen standing. HBeside it the factory
1s marhked by a carpark behind which is a building which may have
once been part of the chaff-cutting works,

The brothers Michael and Fatrick Crinnion first registered their .
company on 1%9.1, 1893 (31 and were described as "Froduce
Merchants and Chaff Millers’ so the diversity in production
evident from the original owners was continued. The records of
the Corporate Affairs OFffice show that the Company was struck off
the Register of Business Firms on 3Z.B.29. (S

From the Directories we find that in 1922 Grigg and Sons took
over the site, and although they are described as Chaff-millers
af 14-18 South Street they appear to have discontinued
cthaffmilling soon aftter agquiring the site. However, they
continued as produce merchants for many years. (33

Moonee Fonds

In 188% another chaff-mill opened not far from Ascot Vale. This
was awned by Fraser and Thomas and located in Mount Alexander
Road, Moonee Fonds. Thomas Samuel was owner for a time and in
1921-2 it was under the name of White and Smiley. In 19230
technology overtoolk the Moonee Fonds chaff-mill when it was
coverted to the Essendon Motor Garage and it continued o
function as such under a variety of owners until the 1960s.

Williamstown

A hay and corn store was situated at 126 Cecil Street,
Williamstown some time around 1215. It was run by the partnership
of Boode and Steele originally, but later was krnown as James
Stwaele and Co and eventually sold to a company called Frous (7).
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It had & barn measuring 30 feet high and 80 feet long with a
cobbled floor. In 1931 a chaff—cutter and boiler were still omn
the site as remembered by J.H. Gteele, son of James Steeie. (547

Fontscray.
Hopkins Strest

The first chaff-mill in Footscray was constructed in 1887 by Hugh
BE. Gilmour and was known as the Excelsior Chafi-cutting Mills,
This was in Micholson St. Footscray and later moved tao the corner
of Hopkinsg and Irving Streets, Bilmour also operated as a corn
and grain merchant, in Melbourne Road, Mewport around the same
time. In 1893 Gilmouwr sold the busziness to John Barwise who
conducted business ag a ﬁha%*wcuttew, grain mrorchant, produce
merchant and a variety of other titles from 88 Hopkins Street,
Footscray. He also had a Hay and Corn store in Williamstown Road.

From 19206 to 1910 J. Robinson was associated with the mill
followed by Robert Gardner +or just one vear.

(Other chatf-mill operators in Footscray were Hugh McPherson who
had a hay and corn store in Hopkins Street, and Fawley, whose hay
and corn store was on the corner of Irving and Hopkins Streets.
The latter +irm had a chatf-cutter in operation, according to a
local resident and although no dates for the companies have been
eztablished it is possible the business of John Barwise was
continued by one or both of them atter 1210. They may also have
been managers at the mill. (53 In the directory for 1912, 88-92
Hoplins Street is described as vacant land indicating that by this
time all chaft+f—milling had ceased on the site.

Schutt & Barpie

John R. Bochutt had a dairy farm oft Williamstown Road, Spotswood
where he grew his +irst corn and cut his first chaftf. He also
owned land in Maidstone, on the south east corner of Hampstead
and Williamson Foads as well as Lots 48-%1 % 56-59 bounded by
Hampstead, Emu, Mitchell and Richard Streets. These all date From

the 18%0s.

He constructed a chaff-mill on the corner of Geelong and
Williamstown Roads, West Foptscray in 19213 and began cha+ff-
cutting and pat—-crushing. in 1%¥1é6 C.E. Barrie of Melton (zsee
below) entered full partnership with Schutt and in the following
yvear, dug to ‘limitations for expansion on their present site and
lack of gasy accessibility to a railhead...lthey decided tol
purchase & motre favourable site —directly opposite— on the corner
of Geelong and Sunshine Roads. The West Footscray railway station
and sidings were only 50 yards disbtant. ™ (567

In 1718 a railway siding was installed, providing direct rail
access to the main linez to the north, north-west, west and
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south—-west. It was extended in 17219, a rail truck weighbridge was
purchased from the Victorian Railways and moved from the Fickett
Street siding and was installed on Sunshine Road in April 1920,
at a caost of 2B3 pounds. Further extensions to the sidings were
made between 19237 and 19346 resulting in twe lines running across
Sunshine Road and right through the factory to Geelong Road.
Extensions into Geelong Road were removed in 1258 and four years
later the railtruck weighbridge was out of commission. The last
link with rail transport was finally broken when the sidings were
purchased by Victorian Railways and the lines across Sunshine
Road were closed. (37)

Schiutt and Barrie diversitied in 1227 when they commenced wheat
gristing or flour milling. (58) Rail trucks were pulled in by
horse, sometimes with BO fto 100 waiting on the siding. The hay
was forked out of them into the lower storey of the mill which
was built over a quarry. The chatf-cutters were also down in the
hole and 100 ton of hay could be stored on either side of the
machines for use during a wet spell o+ when no hay was coming in.
The mill was built on three levels with eslevators taking hay to
the cutters and cha+t+f up the mixing and storage bins on the
middle +loor or to the baggers on the top floor. A loading
platform was also constructed on the middle level +for loading
raillway trucks which could came right into the mill. Schutt %
Barrie also had stables in Geelong Road, Footscray beside the
residence of H.R. Schutt on the south-east side of the road and
later had an interest in a motor gatrage on the site of their
original mill., (S%)

The original horizontal steam engine was replaced by a high
speed steam engine some time before 1933 and this was in tutn
changed to electric in about 19546. The overhead shatting was
retained except for the cutters which were driver by their own
motors via VY-belts.

Up to 4% men were employed at the mill with two or three girls
working in the office. Women were few at the mills but Miss
Reynolds, an office secretary, is remembered by everyone who had
dealings with the mill and was there {for nearly as long as the
building. Six baggies were sewing all the time upstairs, and bags
were stacked by hand. Elevators helped move bags to the rail
trucks but road vehicleg were loaded through a hole in the
bagging floor through which bags were simply dropped down with a
thump. (609

In later years they diversified by building a flour mill next
door which produced bran, polliard and wheatgerm for stock +feed,
and flour for bakeries. Their ‘Green String’ brand chaff was,
according to Jack Findlater, renowned for its quality and won alil
the big prizes at the show'. L1

A second weighbridge was installed for road vehicles and became
Fublic Weighbridge ‘no 86" on the service road on the north side

of Geelong Read. It was first tested by the Department of Weights
and Measures in May 1957 but was in uwse much earlier than this.
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It is presently operated by Fr Roberts and ig in original
condition with the old beam balance and mechanism. (&2

Echutt and EBarrie's Weighbridge, opposite the site of their
chaff-mill, West Footscray, 1987. FPhoto., G. Vines.

Mr Bartie was killed in a car accident on the Ballarat Eoad on
2Z.7.192%1 and Jessie May Barrie became a Ditrector in lieuw of C.E.

Bartie as from Z24.7.31 (63D
From 15.1.40 the directors were J.R. EBEchutt, D.§. Robinson and
Jessie Barrie while the Company was described as B8chutt and

Barrie Flour Mills Fty Ltd as well as Schutt and Barrie Fty Ltd.
The Company finally closed down about 1968. (&4)

Diggers Rest and Farwan

Austral Grain and MProduce Pty Ltd. later Austral Grain and émbler

This company was formed in 1911, its articles of ascsociation
being dated Z.4.11., These state that the Company was established
as ‘grain and produce merchants for retail, wholesale, import-
prport of grain and produce ot every kind including onions
Fotatoes butter cheese, manures, every kind of {food for cattle
and other animals:; alsp to nanutacture all the above .

The initial directors were Frederick John Cato, W.H. McFarlane
and J.E. Rowe and the (Company was based originally in Collins &t



and from 1919, at 46 King 5% relbourne. :

From 15.6.1715, when Qliver Ambler came into the Company along
with Alfred EBarwan and J.A. Viscon, the Company’'s holdings were
transferred to Austral Grain and Ambler Pty Ltd and Austral Grain
and Froduce was wound up. (&65)

Diggets Rest.

The Diggers Rest mill was originally built by Austral Grain and
Froduce in 1912 and was located adjacent to the railway line. (4&)

A directory reference for 1922 lists George Dixon as a foreman for
Austral SGrain and Ambler chaff-mills in Diggers Rest. Donald L
McDonald was manager of the mill in the =arly years and lived
with his family nearby. In 1926 the mill was taken over by
Schutt, Barrie and Robinson.

The cha+t+ bags were sewn with ted string to distinguish them and
when they were brought down to Schutt and Barrie’'s Footscray

mill it was sometimes the practice to replace the siring with the
graen string of their mill. (&7)

It eventually burned down in 1939,

Diggers Rest chaff—-mill about 1720, Donald MclDonald, second +from
the left. (courtesy of Ron Cameron?

=1




Schutt Barrie and Robinson th td

In 1926 J.R. Schutt and C.E. Barrie joined with Henry Robinson of
May Farm, Truganina to form a company %o adquire land at Diggers
Flest and deal in dairy, farm and garden produce. They were
described as cha+++ buyers, cutters and deslers, corn straw and
fodder merchants, and dealers in a variety of agricultural
praducts. The company of Schutt and Rarrie Fty Ltd is mentioned
several times in articles of association etc. and Schutt, Barrie %
Robinson’s registered office is the same as Schutt and Barrie’'s
Geelong Road, West Footscray chaftf—-mill,

From 17.2.24 Henry’'s sons, David Etanley and Douglas Ernest
Fobinson were taken into the Company and allotted 233 shares
each. Both were described as contractors as was H. FHobinson who
now bhad 334 shareszs. The members of the Company were listed in
correspondence with the Corporate Affairs office dated

146.10.1929, as folliowsy

Schutt J.R. Geelong Road, Footscray  Director
Rarrise C.E. Darlingstord, Melton Director
Robimson H.F. EBarkley St. Footscray Manager
Robinson D.E. Diggers Rest Chaff-miller
Robinson D.8. Diggers Rest Chatf-miller

It appears from thisg that David and Stanley were working at the
mill while their father managed it, although this arrangement
changed when David togk over from Henry as manager +rom 14.11,731
and Hentry transferred his shares to his sons equally as of

10120 52,

Schutt Barrie and Robinson Pty Ltd. continued to be listed in the
directories until 1943 even though the Diggers Rest mill was
burned down in 12392, after which the Robinsons moved to Malton
where they bought out Ebbott Kebby and commenced running that
mill. (&8)

Farwan.

In 1211 Austral Grain and Froduce built a chaff-mill at Farwan
oppoeite the station and beside the Ballarat railway line.The
building measured 90 +feet by &0 feet, had a concrete floor and is
said to have had oneg of the first telephaones in the district in
its office. Donald McDonald was the one—time manager of this
mill. (&9} McDonald is also credited with managing the Sydenham

chaff—-mill, (70}

In January 1923 C.E. Barrie constructed a siding to the mill and
in the following yvear the lease for the siding was transferred to
Bchutt and Barrie Fty. Ltd. This indicates that Schutt and Barrie
already had an interest in the mill although the exact date of
the change in ownetship is not known.

An interesting feature of the operation of the siding was the
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raquirement that the Company get permission and a key to the
chock blocks from the station—-master before moving trucks between
the chaff-mill anmd the shed road. This was probably achieved by
hauling the trucks with horses, as was common an the lightly
constructed chaff-mill sidings.

The siding was blocked off in 1939 and a one pound fee for
keepping the siding in place was waived by the railways. This
sugaests that the chaff-mill was no longer in use and so may have
burned down around the same time as the Diggers Rest mill.

The siding continued to be used by fthe railway department in the
19605 and the Australian Barley Board considered using the siding
in 1943 but found the condition of the track too poor. Schutt and
Barrie's gtill had a lease for the siding although they were not
paving the fee. This was finally cancelled in December 19249 and
the trackwork was removed in the New Year, obliterating the last
trace of the mill. (71)

Bacchus Marsh.

4. Gisborne Road

Fearce Brothers

Fearce EBrothers established their +irst chatf-mill on BGisborne
Road (Church Street) in 188B&6. In 1203 Fearce Bros. also had a hay
and corn store in Main Street, BRBacchus Marsh as well as other
ventures in farming incliuding pioneering irrigation and chicory
production. (72)

B. Maddingley, west of railway gates

In 1908 the mill wes moved to Maddingley, Jjust south of the
railway gates and diagonally opposite the Bacchus Marsh station.
The move and choice of location was clearly designed to enable
more efticient transport of hay and chaff via the railway line,
and to this purpeose the new mill had its own siding, also
constructed in 1908. Again, engines were not allowed on the siding
and trucks had to be shunted by horses. A new agreement with the
railway in 1920 transferred the lease of the siding to Frederick
C. Pearce, who managed the mill and appears to have conducted the
business separately from the other parts of the family

enterprise (73%)

Tim Bhea remembers, ‘3% loads of lucern would come in to Fearce's
cha+fi-mill before twelve o’'clock. Fearce had & big business in
it; a tremendous business. He'd supply it to all the dairymen
around Melbourne. ' (74)

Fearce Hrothers had been general merchants in Bacchus Marsh and

Jepatrit since the mid to late 19th century. Ebenezer and Thomas




Fearce' s 1886 chaff-mill, Bacchus Plarsh with a mobile chaf+-
cutting machine in front of their works. courtesy Bacchus Marsh
Historical Society. .

George Fearce, both farmers of Bacchus HMarsh, originally
registered the Company on 14.2.18%95%, T.6. Fearce died on
26.11.14, and Thomas Hodgson Fearce of Main Street, Baccus Marsh
Joined the firm in his place. Next, Ebenezer Fearce retired on
21.7.19212. A letter dated 246.11.192 to the Registrar GSeneral
indicates the Company discontinued business in Jeparit over 10
yeatrs previously but still retained the Bacchus Marsh business.
This was signed by Alfred Fearce, solicitor at Bank Flace
Melbourne and RBacchus Marsh, indicating another of the diverse
skills of the Pearce family. (73

A note in the Defunct Business File dated 26.46.30 indicates that
the Company was still carrying on business at that time and in
19231 the mill was enlarged, but in 1944, Fearce Brothers was
struck off the register. (76)

M.H. Joske, tirading as Joske Grain Products, took over the mill

in 1946 and reconditioned the siding but this venture was short-
lived and by 1251 the siding was dismantled and the site becams

part of the Maddingley Brown Coal Company’'s land. (77)

In 1230 the Fearce family extended its business interests

further, this time into motor cars when Fearce and Simpson’s motor
garage was established. By 1940 it was known as Fearce Motors

and eventually became F.E8. Carey Motors.



“ [

In tiving memory, the Fearces played a dominating role in the life

and commerce of Racchus Marsh. Tom Fearce had the grocery store |
which was where the 'Rite Way’ ' now stands, Fred Fearce took care 4
of the car sales and was responsible for selling many of the
firet cars in the arsa through their General Motors agency. This
was later spld to Fercy Carey. Featrce Brothers also ran the
thicory kiln in Bacchus Marsh and wetre prominant in the Baptist
Church and the Maddingley Fark trust. (78)

A company which may have been connected with the Fearces of
Bacchus Marsh ran a chaff-mill in Werribee from the 18%90s. This
was Fearce and Hancock which is dealt with below under Werribee.

C. East of station

In 1890 Thomas Andrews constructed a chaff-mill in Maddinglevy to
the gast of and opposite Bacchus Marsh Station. The siding
agreament with the railways department was made on 27.4.21 and |
again reguired that no engines be allowed on the siding, but the 5
siding may have been operating before then. This mill may also

Mave taken advantage of the lucern grown in the area and the

demand ot the dairy industry.

In December 1925 the siding was assigned to F.C. FPearce who was
expanding his business but five yvears later fell victim to the
Depression and closed the mill, paying for the Victorian Railways
pertion of the siding to be dismantled into the bargain. (7%}

Melton South. Barrie/Ward.
Corner of Brooklyn and Station Roads.

C.E.Barrie, who later went into partnership with J.R. Schutt in
Footzsoray., construacted a mill in Station Road, Melton, in 1905,
This was a co—operative sffort with his brother Alex and was known
at Parrie Brothers’ mill. (80) The 19203 Sands and PMcDougal
Victorian Ditectory lists, under Chaff Cutters: “Weselman, F,

late Alex Barrig, Steam chaff cutting and grain crushing mills,

23 Courtney Street, North Melbourne’ . It appears +from this
reterence that Rarrie’'s involvement in chaff-cutting extended
bevond the local district even though both A.W. and C.E. Barrie
continued farming in Melton along with their milling interests.

In 1908 Barrie Brothers moved the mill to Rockbank. (81)

Later, arcound 1910, C.E. Barrie built another mill an the same
site and resumed chatf-milling in Melton. The mill was extended
and improved substantially with sidings being constructed in 1907
and acetylene lighting installed. (82)




Barrie’'s, later Ward's chaff-mill, Melton, egarly this century.
courtesy Mrs. kEdna Barrie.

A change in ownership came some time atter the new mill was
constructed. Victorian Railways records give Glover Oniansg and
Co. as the owner of the mill in 1207, but contain another
reference indicating the lease for the siding was transterred
from C.E. Barrie to H.5.K. Ward on 11.3.1910. (BX) Other sources
suggest that Ward bought the mill in 191& and shortly after was
pwned by Ward and Mekenzie with Joe Dixon as manager. (84)

In 1913 the mill was producing 70 tons of chaf+ deily and on one
ocecasion 17 trucks were loaded in two hours of overtime. On 11
March 1216, Ward’'s mill worked from 7.30 a.m. on Friday to 4 p.am.
on Saturday to fulfil a shipping order and in March that year an
order of 100} tons of hay was filled by keeping two hay presses
warking continuously. (B3)

A fire in 1920 destroyed the mill but it was soon reconstructed.
fAs Pp engines were allowed on the siding, horses were used by Me
Ward to pull trucks to and from the shed road at Melton station,
and tractors were used from 1762Z. The cost of maintaining this
siding varied considerably and was pavable to the Railways
Department as an annuwal fee. From 1930 to about 1950 it was 79
pounds 5 shillings and 4 pencey then 24 pounds in 19546 and Z1

-

pounds in 1263,

In 1946 H.5.K. Ward became H.5.K. Ward Fty. Ltd. and the mills in
Melton and Rockbank were transtferred to the new company.



The building comprised two large bays with what was known as a
right of way between them, through which the hay would be
delivered and then stacked in the loft which measured 18 by 20
feet. From here the hay was taken across by elevators to the
cutters then up from the cutters to be bagged in the other loft.
The loft was five feet above the tray of the tirucks so the bags
could simply be dropped down an the trav. A truck of chaff went
ot by rail every day to Brown’'s of Deniliquin until the mill

burned down. (86}

Atter Leo' Tarleton bhad: lost his hand in a chaff-cutter accident,
he made an agresment with Ward’'s that he should grow hay for the
mill and Ward’'s would cut it. Leo’'s brother-in-law, Jack Tolhurst
managed the mill far a while and then Neil Rocks managed it.
Around 1973, it was operatced under the name of Ward and MeokKenzie

Fty. I-td. (877

The mill was again destroyed by fire in 1977, but _his time the
cost of rebuilding was too great for the owners to bear, due to
the diminished sales and profits. Ward, however, kept paving for
the siding lease and appears to have kept his options open. When
the land was re-zoned as residential in 1978 a further obstacle
to reconstruction was met and in the same year the turnout to the
siding was removed. On Z2.2.84, not long after Brooklyn Road was
reconstructed and reconnection of the rail access made impossible,
the agreement with the railways was terminated. (88) The railway
was still in use when the mill burned down, mainly +for bringing
briguettes in for the boiler.

Rockbank.

The Rockbapk mill was buailt in 1908 by the RBarrie Brothers
opposite the railway station and its machinery brought from
Melton by horse and dray. (89) Moving large machinery and
buildings appears to have been something of an accomplished art
for the Barries as they wetre also responsible for moving their
Dierriwarrh home to Ferris Lane Melton by truck in 1941 (20 and
Jack Findlater 's house from Reckbank to Footscray West. (912

Hill and Reid, chatf-millers who operated from Eing Street
Melboune in 17159, bad an interest in the mill at some stage
although when and how they were involved is not known. (92)

H.8. k. Ward trading as Glover Onians and Co. alsoc bought this
mill around the same time as the Melton mill and constructed a
giding in 1714, which was extended in 1921%. The manager was

Archie MecEachern. (23}

By 1.7.35 the mill appears to have been out of action as
Vigtorian Railways were uwsing the siding and waived the annual
maintenance charge. In 1939 the siding was purchased by the

railways. (94)

The Rockbank mill also burned down.
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Railway turnout to site of Rockbank chaf+-mill, in right
background, 1987. Fhoto GB. Vines.

Glover Onians and Co. (HSE Ward)

On the Zrd of January 1877 William Glover of Woodend and Richard
Onians of Armidale, Auctionesrs and Grain Merchants with offices
at 54-546 king Bt. Melbowrne, first registered the business of
Glover Oniams % Co. Four years later Harold Seymour Eellam Ward
(HSE Ward) who was a Brain Merchant and Commission Agent of 204-
3046 Eing Street, Melbourne, and William Alexander Reid, a Grain
Merchant and Corn Agent of Aberfeldie in Essendon, become members
of the firm while W. Seymore and R. Onians retired.

In September 1702, when Reid retired, Edwin Henry Clark from South
Melbourne became a member. His time with the Company was also
short as he retired in June 1704,

The Company appears to have had another change in its
directorship in June 199092 when James Arthur Berwick of Caulfield
declared that he was authorised to carry on the business of Chatf
and Grain Merchants at Werribee as Glover Omians and Co. (The
letter—-head contains the words: ‘Glover Onians and Co. (HSK Ward)
grain and produce salesmen S54-60 King St Melbourne.) This is the
last record of the firm until it was struck off the Register of
Businesses in July 1929, (95)

Ward appears to have continued in the chaff-milling business on
his own from this time until 1946 when he formed a proprietary

limited company.



East of Rockbank station.

John Hocking and Son

Another chaff-mill operated in Rockbank for a short time, This
was established in 19253 by G. Cockbill who leased land from the
railways for a chaff-cutting business and a siding. It continued
until 1931 when the points and crossing were removed and the site
appears to have been vacant for some years. In 192346 the siding
was reconnected by J. Hocking and Sons who later sold out to Hay
Froducnts Fty. Ltd. They in turn ceased business about 1240 and
the siding was again disconnected. On 146.46.72 an inspection by
railway staff revealed no evidence of the siding or a business on

railway land. (%6)

John Hocking and Sons were Hay, Corn, Chatf, Wood and Coal
Metrchants of Dandenong Road, Malvern and Nepesan Road, Nowerth
Erighton and were estahlished on 1.2.120B. Hpcking was a resident
of ‘The Grange' East Malvern, and was a produce merchant by
trade. His venture into chaff-milling in the west appears to have
been a sideline or subsidiary to his main business in the eastern

suburbs.

The Comrany ceased on Zi.12.191%. (?7)

Melton

Brooklyn St.

The origin of the second Melton mill is a little obscure. Leo
Tarleton believes it was constructed by Ebbott and Kebby (their
company was registered as Ebbott kKebby) who were certainly
operating the mill in the mid 1920s, (8B} but Railway Department
records indicate the land was leased by Dirxon Brothers as early
as Novembetr 1217 when the original siding was constructed. (99) A
photograph in Btarr’'s Flains of Fromise which shows workers on
construction of ‘Dixdon’s Chaff-mill’ about 1210 again points to
Divon Brothers as the proprietors of the mill, (100) and ERill
Cahill recalled in 1976 that the two chaff-mills in Melton were
Diwon Brothers and Wards, producing up to 1800 tons per month and
each employing 20 men. (1Q1) According to Leo Tarleton, Dixon
managed the mill when it was owned by Ebbott Kebby, but as Ebbott
and Eebby did not form their company until 1927 it is likely

that Dirxon was the builder and first owner of the mill and
continued on as manager afier selling it to Ebbott Kebby. (102)

The Directory for 1711 lists A. Gillies as a chaff-miller in
Melton, but it has not been discovered which mill he was involved
with or whether he managed or worked in the mill.

Dixon Bros. were also prominant chaff-millers during the 1910s
and ‘'20s im other parts of the state and ran mills in Corig
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Htreet, Beelong, Doveton Street, North Ballarat, Eurrumbest and
Blowhard and had a produce store at 548 Flinders §t, Melbourne.
They were still listed as Froduce Merchants in Melbourne in 19596.

A siding was constructed from the Number I Road, (another siding
at Melton station:, across Brooklyn Street to the mill. One line
Fan through the centre of the mill while another passed to the
south - Horses only were allowsd on the siding to pull wagons
from the special hay loading platform to the mill.

In 1963 the annual maintenance fee was 58 pounds and at this time

the rail trucks were pulled by tractor and chain. The mill’'s rail :
ziding iz recorded aszs being transferred from Dixon EBEros. to Fbbott !
Egbby in 19324, (103

Ebbott Kebby

Ebbott Eebby was established on 21 July 1923 as grain and seed
merchantsy hay, straw and fodder merchants; meat merchants; corn,
Flour, jute merchants; manutacturers, millers, chaffcutters, grain
and seed crushers, fodder compresssrs, frulterers, greengrocers,
butchers, bakers, grocers, wine and spirit merchants, etg. etc.

Both directors, F.B. Ebbott and E.J. kebby were described as
chaf+ and grain metchants, and had been conducting such
businesses separately for some time. Just prior to the formation
nf the Company, in 1722, Arthur H., Ebbptt resided in Bamfield 5¢t.
Sandringham and E.J. Kebby was a 'Grsin and Merchant Banker' of
528 Collins Street, Melbourne. Clearly they had little to do with
the ectual operation of the miil but instead they provided
capital and collected profits.

On 17.8.31 E.J. kebby died and was replaced in the firm by R.H.
Ebbott, Arthur's son., The Company’'s capital in 1940 was 10 Q00
sharezs, each worth 2 pounds., They were s5till listed in the
FMelbourne Telephone Directory under Chatf Merchants in 1939, but
must Mave ceased business by 1947 as this is the date of the last

file entry. (104

The mill was changed over fram steam to electricity for driving
the cutters, riddles, elevators and baggers in 193%. Steam has,
however, been retained for treating the hay before it is cut.

(103

The mill was built up to its present size over many years with
bayvs being added on to cope with expansion and the need for mare
hay storage. Up to 200 tons of hay could be stacked in the mill
for cutting up during the winter months. (1047

In 1940 Ebbott ¥ebby were bought out by Robinson Bros. {(trading
under the name of 8. and D. Robinson’), who had worked the Diagers
FRest mill until it burped down. The Robinson f$amily had come from
Truganina and still own land in the area. They have been hay
growers for over D0 years and carted hay to Schutt and Barrie's
in Footscray from 1928 as well as the other mills in the area.
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(107) J

The Robkinsons ran the mill {for 10 years and in 1930 it was taken
over by B.J. Trethowan and Jack Butler. Butler provided the
finance for the mill and when he decided to sell his interest in
the mill it was taken up by Wright Stephenson and Co. (Bust) Fty.
Ltd. E.J. Trethowan continued at the mill as manager for Wright

Stephenson. (108)

Wright Stephenson

This firm’'s history goes back to the firm of Adamson Mackinnon
and Cox Pty Ltd., auctioneers of racing and other types of

horses. It was registered on 15.72.22. W.S5.Cox was the famous -
horse breeder and racer at Moonee Valley Racecourse and M.F.

Adamson and Meackinnon were both in the bloodstock business and

their move into chaftf-milling appears to have been to provide a
guaranteed supply of feed for their race horses.

In 1927 the Company name was thanged teo Mackinnon and Cox and
then in 1251 Tom Reynolds Wright was appointed to the Company and
W.E5. Cox resignd as director but continued to hold shares. At the
gsame time the name of the Company was changed to Wright
Stephenson Bloodstock (Aust) Pty Ltd. and the Cox and Mekinnon
shares were sold to Wright Stephenson and Co. in August of the
same yeaar,

Wright Stephenson were seed and grain merchanis of 34 Queen
Street, Melbourne in 1932 and were expanding their business into
feed manufacture through purchase of the Melton mill as well as
Dixon Brothers® mill in Burrumbeet. The growth of the firm at
this time is indicated by a sale of shares which increased
capital to 43 000 pounds. In the 19530s T.R. Hright died and
several new appointments were made inciluding directors based in
New Zealand.

In 1962 a statement of assets included the land and buildings at
the Newmarket stables but no mention was made of the chaff—mills
at that time., On 25.7.65 the Company was wound up. (105}

B.J. Trethowan's son and grandson purchased the mill off Wright
Stephenson in 1962, returning it to family ownership. [t then
went under the name of J.V. Trethowan and Son. This was changed
im 1967 to B.J. Trethowan and Co. Fiy. Ltd. and continues in
operation today, run by EBernie Trethowan. (110)

Im 1982 the railway siding was dismantled along with the siding
to Ward’'s mill, due to reconstruction of Brooklyn Road.
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Trethaowan ‘s Chatf-mill, Melton, 1987. Fhoto. 6. Vines.

Sydenham.

Sydenham is one mill we know little about. It was erected around
1212 by J. Bloan and Son on land lsased from the Railways for 4
pounds & month. Sloan and Son went into ligidation in 1933 and the
site was put up for auction. Thomas EBrowne Blaney bought the site
for 1110 pounds and carried on business under the name of Bullen
and Moss. Slaney managed the mill. Then the Yictorian Oat

Fool bought it to manufacture oatmeal and in 1972-3F the

inevitable +ire destroyed it. It is presently a garden supply
depoat. (111)



Site of Sydenham chatf-mill, 1987. Now occupisd by & garden
nursery, note the siding in the foreground. Fheoto. 6. Vines.

Werribee. Ison/Thompson.
Cherry St. top end of Watton St.

William Ison was born in Cambridge, England in 18%Z2, and came to
Australia in the 18&0s. He constructed a chaff-mill as part of a
wood yard and grain store business and fitted it with all the
neccessatry machinery. (112} The mill was located on Cherry Street
besidse the railway crossing and lasted until recent vears when 1%
was demolished to make way for a new supermarket.

Ison had a house on Bulban Rd. mear the race course and was
prominent in the Racing Club and as a farmer and supplier of hay
and cha$ft to Melbourne he and died about 1235, (113%)

18000 tons of grain and hay were loaded at Werribee station each
yvear after the Chirnside land had been subdivided for tenant
farms and sold to the MMEW in the early 12005 and ‘Werribee
became known as the principal hay growing district in the colony’
(114

Some time between 1925 and 1220 the mill was putrchased by D. W.
Thompson, trading as Thompson Brothers Chaff and Froduce Lid. In
1250 the Thompsons also ran the firm of Thompson Bros. Timber and

Hardware Ltd.. -

At some s=tage Thompson téoh over the mill run by Freddie H. Oldie

in




Werribee on the site:of the present FPowers Hardware store. This 1
was, at earliest, atter WW II (115

Thompson Chaff and Froduce Fty. Ltd. continued to operate at 3
Cherry Street, Werribee until 1967, aftet which ne record of the

mill has been located.

B. E.C. Rohertson.

In about 1904 E.C. Robertson began cutting chatf in Werribee on a
site on the railway reserve near the Werribee Street level
crossing. At the same time he built & siding which was extended
in 1917,

The land for the mill and siding was leased from the Railways and
an annual fee was payable. This amounted to 72 pounds in 1957, 932
pounds in 19263, 57 pounds in 1%464, and %114 1978-B0. (11&) The [
1760 telephone book lists Raobertson E.C. Fty. bLtd. at T2 Collins

§t. and Station Road, Werribee, i

Mlessrs.,. E.C. Rpbertson and Eo.

The firm was first registered in 18932 (but certainly was
established before that date (117)) by Ernest Clarence Robertson
of ‘SBolway’; Grace Street, Moonse Fonds to conduct business as
chatf, grain and general farm produce merchants. At this time the
firm’'s business address was 56 Spencer Street, Melbourne. In 1904
a new registration was lodged for the firm of E.C. Robertson and
Co., Chaff-Cutters and Grain Crushers, Werribee. In 1909 E.C.
Robertson ‘s address was at Ardmillan Road, Moonee Fonds and was
listed as a Commission Agent and Hay and Corn Salesman. In August
1927 the Company was struck off the Register, (118} but Robertson
continued to operate regardless.

E.C. Robertson produced the ‘Orange 8tring’ brand of chaf+f which
distinguished it from Meliton’s "Blue String’ and 'EBlack String’
brands and Schutt and Barrie’'s 'GBreen String’ brand. (119} In
1934 R.M. Watson subleased some of the land and used Robertson’s
siding. This may have been the Watszson who managed the Werribee
Fark butter factory which was buili by Thomas Chirnside. (120)

The siding lease was transferred to E.G. Phelps Fty. Ltd. in 1i9&1
and a weighbridge was constructed on the site at some stage. This
went out of service in 19272-7 when fthe siding maintenance fee was
waived dus to damage to the weighbridge, probably as a form of
compensation.

The siding was finally dismantled in 1982, some time after the
mill had closed.

According to a local farmer ‘Robertson operated as a grain mill
after the chatft+ gave out. ™ (121)
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Dther chaff-mills

Other names crop up as chaff-millers in Werribee but insufficient
information has been found to establish what their involvement
was with the krnown millsy at least three mills did operate in
Werribee. This information has been included as a starting point
for further study.

Fearce and Hancock

A chaff—cutting works in Werribee was registetred in November 1897 i
under the name of Fearce and Hancock and may have been connected !
with the Fearces of Bacechus Marsh. H. Hancock was a produce
merchant with business premises at 160 Commercial Road, Frahran
and a private residence at Charles Street, Frahran. William
Fearce resided at 180 tMontague Street, Albert Fark. Little is
known of this company except that omn 17.11.04, H.Hancock retired. i

(122

Murray records a note, ﬁwahably from the Wgrribee Banmner, that
around 1203 Mr. W. McMurray requested a siding on the west side of
the railway line for a grain mill. (123

The directories alsce list a number of Werribese chaftf-millers
although they do not indicate whether they are mill owners,
managers or workers.

Glover Onians & Co. are listed at Railway Reserve Werribee
from 19207 to 19Z3. This appears to have been at or near
Robertson’'s mill which was also described as 'Railway Reserve'.
Fossibly BGlover Onians had financial interest in Robertson’'s
mill.

Mewton Nicholas is listed between 1917 and 15928 but no details of ;
the mill's location are given beyond ‘Werribee’.

From 19211 to 1915 Robert Walker and J. Woodcock were chaftimillers
in Werribee

In 1915 George Will was a chaff-miller in Werribee

" Mobile Chatf—~mills.

& number of mobile chaff-cutters wetre operating in the region in
the early part of the 19%th century. PMobile chaff—cutters were
manufactured in large numbers by two Melbourne companies, John
Buncle, and Clif+ and Bunting. They were also used by farmers for
producing their pwn chaff, but some operators travelled around
the area cutting chatf at a fee per ton.




Melton area

The Harhknesgs mobile chatt wmill worked in the Meliton arza and was
operated by William Scott Harknesz along with David Roberitzon, a
band—-cutter, and William Morrow, & bag hand; who had lost his
left hand in a chaff-cutter anmd wore a hook in its place. (124}

Arnother photograrph in FPlains of Fromige shows a mobile chaff-
cutter beside a hay stack and is captioned, ‘Barrie’'s travelling
chaftf-cutter” but no other details of this are known. The Barries
ware growing hay +or many yeatrs and were apparently also
aperating a mobile chaff—cutter on their pwn farm around the

area. (1257

The mobile chaft-cutting teams cut for o much per hundredweight
plus the men’ s wajges, the same svstem as used by mebile threshing
teamsz. A steam engine carted the plant out and powsred fthe cutter
and then carted the hay to rail trucks in Melton. In ons job
taking six days, 1200 bags of chaff were sent out. (12717

Barrie'= {travelling chaff-cutter, Courtesy Mrs. Edna Barrie.



Rockbanl: area

in 1218 E.J. Greig of Rockbank was working a travelling chaff-
cutter and continued to do so to 1R326. His production was as
high as 1200 bags in & week. (1Z7)

Jack Findlater has also provided a photograpnh of a mobile chaff—
cutting team in the Toolern Vale area around 1220, His father and
uncle are in the photo which also shows five other workers, a
portable steam engine, dray loaded with chaff bags, water cart
and the chaff-cutter itself.

Travelling chatf—cutting team with Jack Findlsater Snr. third from
right, and his brother on left. (courtesy Jack Findlater).
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S ARCHAEQLOGY

Mozt of the chaff—mill sites discussed above have been visited by
the writer in January ot February [987. In some instancess usetul
information could bhe found in the remnants of foundations and
+loors, signs of sarthworks, roads and railway lines and the
general featurss o¥ the locality. The most striking fsature of
all but the Ascot Vale and Moonese Ponds sites was the prodimity
o+ the mills to railwavs. All but the two above were within a few
metres of railway lines and within 100 meters of a railway
station. igns of =zidings into the mills could also be discerned

5

at many =sites,.
Ag the last surviving mill in the regicon, Trethowan’'s in PMslton
showld be the first dealt with, [t is also the most valuable for
gramination from an archagological perspective as 1t retains
nearly ail the elements of a 17th or sarly 20th censury chaff-
mili., The buiiding consistyg of a sgries of ciy gable-ended bavs

of varying widths, constructed of wooden frames and roof trussss
and clad with corrugated iron. The three central bhavs appear to

bhe the oldest and contain the cutters, steamers and bagging
machines. Additioms have besn made to eithsr side of thess. A

shed at the rear, now used as a workshop, is probably the last
addition to the building. At present., the eastern bay is used for
hay storage and the western bay is used for storage of bagged
chaft and other feeds, each storage area having a through drivewsay

far trucks. The present layout possibly reflects the original wuse

o+ the buildirng and considering the age of the machinery, has
remained substantially uwnchanged for several decades. A private
weighbridge is next te the mill, still operating and the
associated building iz used as an office.

Traces of the railway siding can be found across Brooklyn Road,
which connected with the stock siding opposite the mill, west of
the goods ched.

In the main working area of the mill, the bagging and mixing area,
is raised to the level of the leoading platform with the main
drive shaftt and pulleys directly below the +ioor. The cutters and
rigdles arg also pelow the ftloor level so that the cha+f must bhe
raiged about Z-4 metres overall to the top of the baggers. (128D
The completeness of this mill and the age and integrity of the
pquipmernt offer enormous potential and a unique opportunity for
detailed analyvsis of the engineering and oparation of the chaff-
milling process.

The remainder of the sites have very few intact features by
comparison and pose many difficulties for location and
intaerpretation of the original structure. Many of the conclusions
made must be tentative and we must rely on same guess—wark 1in
ordatr to mentally reconsitruct the mills.

Ward’'s Melton mill was £%till in operation as recently as 1977,
but very little remains today on the site. The line of the siding
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can be traced as a series of sleepers, sleeper depressions, dog :
gpikes and. the occasional rail, Ffrom the hay—loading siding

across Brooklyn Road thirough a vacant lot and turning 90 degress

to Station Road. Boxthorn also marks the line of the track.

Impressions of sleepers from the siding near Ward's chaff-mill,
HMelton, 1987. Fhoto. 6. Vines.

The chatf-mill is delineated by & line of mature peppercorn trees
and gravelled roades around the mill. A water tank has been filled
in and the site has been levelled, but scattered artifactz such
as nails, pieces of steam pipe and machinery and some chartred
timber can still be found aon the site.

Sydenham mill we know, was located on the site of the present MGEES
nursery diagonally opposite the station between the railway line
and Victoria Road. (12%9) The concrate floor of the mill appears
intact, part of it being raised about one metre and still retaining
mounting bolts for machinery. Other areas have been filled with
s0il or obscured by new structures, such as the railway carriages
currently used as offices +for the nursery. The concrete floor of
the mill also appears to have been extended, so0 now the original
outline of the mill is difficult to trace. This might be possible
if the site was clear of potplants and other stock of the
nursery. The raized section suggests a loading platform and
something like the raised machinery area at Trethowans.

A railway siding is =till extant along the east of the site. This
connects with stock-loading ramps across the rpad and appears o
have been out of use for some time.
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The zite of the Diggeﬁs Rest mill has been obscured by filling
and grading parallel to the tailway, south west of the station,
but a few details indicate the mill’'s location. The siding joins
the north-bound track just south of the passenger platform and
has i%s own earth and timber platform which may have been used
tor hay and chaff lecading. An area to the west of this contains
several timbers which may also have been part of a loading
platform, this time for trucks. The tall grass present on the
site made it impossible to trace any surviving building features
such as post holes, but scatftered and half-buried bricks, wood
and iron suggests the ares has been bulldozed sometime in the
past.

Farwan station was demolished in November 198&6. (130) The chaff-—
mill was located north-sast of the station across Whelan’'s Road.
Mo trace of the siding can be seen west of Whelan's Road, but to
the east, the site of the mill is marked by mature Sugar Gums and
a modern house. As this is private property, access to the site
was not gained but it has a good potential for preservation of
remains due to isolation and little activity in the area.

Fearce’'s Maddingley mill may survive, as a building on the site,
now owned by Maddingley EBrown Coal, looks remarkably similar to
the photo of the mill taken in 1908, (1ZF1) although the front
wall has been opened up with +Four roller—doors added. This

s Lo

i

[

il

Fearce’'s chaff-mill, Maddingley, now converted to garages by
Maddingley Brown Coal, 1987. Photo. B. Vines.



building is of timber and corrugated iron construction with a
low—pitched gabled roof. The siding plan (132) shows a desper
building but it is possible that a second bay orice existed behind
the surviving structure but has since been demolished. This would

not be visible in the 1908 photo.

The siding cannot be seen but the tuwrnout on the coal-mine siding
shows where it once connected.

No sign of Fearce’'s 1884 mill could be found, as histarical
records only locate it ‘generally in Church Street. The present
Mobii petrol station iz & possible location, but this is aonly an
educated guess based on a comparison of the photograph in A
Fictorial Mistory gf Bacchus Marsh (1235) with the present
topography and likely sites.

The location of Ward ' s Rockbank mill can be established fiom
historical reports and siding records, but little can be seen of
the site today. The fturnouts +or the siding can be seen although
the remaindebr of the siding has been ripped up. Boxthorn and a
few mature gum trees have grown over the mill site and obscured
the ground entierly, but beneath the prickly cover, some features
may be preserved.

At Werribee, Thompson's mill has been demolished and the site
cbscured by the reconstruction of Cherry Street and the building
of a super—-market. Robertson’'s mill is also demolished, but the
siding remains and the access rpads around the site remain to
indicate the general logation of the building. The Oldis mill has
naot been located bult may be the surviving building now operating
as a pea store by Stockley Holdings, north of Cherry Strest.

Schutt and Barrie’'s West Footscray mill is now a carpark for
Containers Limited. The extent of the gravel defines the original
plan o+ the mill and the concrete foundations of the railway
viaduct (constructed 17234-4) can still be seen on the Geelong
Road service road (1Z%4). The other end of the sidings can still
be seen across. Sunshine Foad. The most tangible evidence of the
mill is the weighbridge on the other side of the service road
which is still operated and registered as Schutt and Barrie’s.
With the siding=, i1t shows where and how hay and chaff was
browght in and out of the mill and helps reconstruct the scene of
a few decades ago when rail and road trucks were coming and

going all day at the mill.



be SUGGESTIONS FOR FURTHER RESEARCH

The research compiled for this project has come from a wide range %'
of sources. Yery little of the history of chaftff-milling has been g
written up. Local histories of Melton, Werribee and Bacchus Marsh

have made mention of chaff-mills in the local context but fthe data

is sparse. Documantary sources consulted include files from

Corporate Affairs, Defunct Business Register, the Lands

Departiment, Department of Agriculture, V lLine, Department o+

Weights and Measures and the Frobate Office. Each of these has !
been able f{o add a little to the overall story, whether in terms
ot ownership of mills, production figures, transpart arrangements
or family connections.

The Victorian Commercial and Fost Office Directories have been
used extensively and have provided a good overview of the spread
of chaff-milling. One of their draw—-backs, however, is that they
atre incomplete, and sometimes inaccurate, and do not distinguish
in their descriptions of trades and occupaticns, between owners,
managers and employees of chaff-mills. Sometimes a mill is not
listed +or several years after it had started up or else L
continues to be listed a year or two after it had closed down.

Country trades are absent from the main directeory, Sands and 1
McDougal, until 1202,

Newspapers, books on farming and horse breseding and picthure
collections have also been gleaned +or possible references to hay
and chaff. An appeal for local memories had a great response and
resulted in snippets of information from some and long detailed
degcripions from others.

Inspection of sites has added to the understanding o+ the
cgperation and location constraints of the mills.

In all pf these source areas further work can be done. & list of
contacts has been compiled which could provide more oral history,
prrivate records and possibly lead to further sources. The
archival sources could be =sxamined much more closely; for
example, the V Line files consulted were summaries and maps of
gach mill. Reference in these is made to correspondence files in
the Deparitment’'s own archives which would certainly provide new
and more detailed information.

Frobate records exist for some of the deceased mill owners, and
an examination of these could show inventories of mills as well
as family connections. As many of the pecple involved in the
chaff and hay—farming industries were related to gthers in the
industry, it would be a valuable avenue of tesearch toc follow up
these family connectiopns and analyse their importance for the
development of the industry as a whole.

Council Rate Books, Lands Files, Titles searches and Department
of Agriculture files could all be used to refine our knowledge of
the structure or the industry and the details of ownership.
Fariiamentary Fapers need to be systematically gleaned for



raferences to the bay growing and stockteed industry.

Statistical records are available for agricultural production and
manufacturing and could be used to establish long—term trends in
the industry az well as details of size of mills, number o+
employeaes and chaff-cutting machines, production figures, etc..
These are held in the Australian Bureau of Statistics library in

Flelbourne.

Further study could be concerned with putting the local chaff-

cutters in,a national or international context and establishing

their overall contribution fto industrial development and economics, i
particularly in relation to the transport industry. The !
connection between chaff-millers and motor garages has been

mentioned in relation td Schutt and Harrie's, Fearce’'s and the

Moonee FPonds mills. This would also be a good line to follow with {M

furthsr research.

A multidisciplinary approach has been taken so far in researching
chaff-milting invelving documentary, oral and archeaological
sources. The rasult has been to give a broad coverage of many
aspeacts of the industry in the shart time available. Any further
research would benefit from a similar approach. Further
archaeological research might involve recording the physical
structure of the surviving miil in Melton and passibly other
mills in or out of Victoria, as well as locating and recording
any surviving features of the demolished mills, such as
foundations, floorplans or railway sidings and access routes.
Finding, frecording and poseibly collecting atrtifacts associated
with chaff-cutting such as machinery, teools, special clothing,
etc. would add tep our understanding of the industry.




APFENDIX A Flans of chaff—-mills with sidings.

Coppied courtesy of ¥ Line, Sidings Administration Section. Fram
Dismantled Sidings Register and Indexes.



Schutt and Barrie's chaff-mill, West Footscray
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Austral Grain and Ambler, Parwan.
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G. Cockbill mill, Rockbank, east of statien.
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Ward's chaff-mill, Rockbank.
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Ward's Melton chaff-mill, Station Road.
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Trethowan's mill, Brooklyn Road, Melton.
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Austral Grain and Produce Diggers Rest
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APFPENDIX B Select list of chaff-mills in Victoria, 1880s to 1980s

From various VYictorian Directories, {(see Sources)

1880s tO 1900s

Eallarat 188% Mrs J Dunstany Ballarat Firewood and Timber
Coy Cargeeg; closed 1914,
Dunstown 198BS Greentields, kEennedy and Box, Trethowan and FEox.
FEvneton 1888 Humphtey's, J. Blen.
Eingston 1890 Morish Brothers. :
Weawlvn ' 1892 Stewart and Co. Donning and M 7

(J and R Tyner had a chafimill at hNewlyn and constructed a siding
in 1892 which was extended in 1902 They also had chaf+mills in
Eingston, arnd Allendale.)

Wallace 1893 Holden
Geelong 1892 Beelong Co-operative Chaff Cutting and
Froduce Society l.td.

{It is interesting to see a cu-opertative in chaffmilling. Could
this be a2 farmers co-op? Why would it be formed:™)

EBlowhard 1700 E.C. Robertson

(1902 was the year in which country trades were first listed in
Sands and McDougal 's Commercial Directory of Victoria. They

included milis in Colac, kKyabram-2, Numurkah, Stawell, Bonnie
Doon, kyneton, Beelong and Clunes by 190%.)

Others which have been fournd fraom records of Victorian Railways
sidings include:

Learmonth 1902 Reid Hrwos. HSE Ward removed 1220

Bungarese 1906 Feaste & Co

Fyneton 1910 Barwise and Co.

Lara 1910 Lara ghatf cutting mills

Malmsbury - 17210 Omeara Bros. Molisom of Malmsbury

Burrumbeet 1211 Dixon Brothers. continues in Burrumbest to 1764
Allendale 1211 J.Mills, Tyner Bros. (%)

In 1913 to 1919 there were only 4 chaff mills in Melbourne while
others in the country included:

Lara 171% Eneale and Berrard
1915

Foyabram J. Barnett

Fvabram H. Trevaskis

Shepparton D.Calder

Mansfield F.o F. Cummins

Eridgawater




~-on~Loddon,
Raywood
Elmore
Yarawonga
Murchison
Clunes
Willaura
Kilmore
tyneton
Nurmuriah
Eynetan
Melbourne

Cook % Sons
A. Johmsans
H.J. Eortum
F. Eyffin
J. Millepr
W. Turnbull
W.J. Walker
H., Walter
A. Watson
A. Williams
J. Barwige
Hill and Re

1?16 to present.

Eerrybank
Lance+field
Ceslong
breenvale
Robbs Lane,
Melb.
Freston
Geelong

1?1& R.A. O

19217 fEneale and Gerrard

A. Reidy C. Ross

id

nians

19218 Barwan Cha+f+ Cutters continues to 1942

1920 Brown,

Gilber
Marsha

1921
1921

1922 Dixon Bros F.L. 20 Corio St.

John R.

%
1

(In 19223 the chat+ cutters listing was dropped,

included in

Sunbury

Sunbury

Lara

Lara

Burrumbeet

Narth
Melbourne

1924 Fagan,
12428 Tyner
1950 Lyall

1987 J & R

‘Froduce Merchants. '}

and they were

William continues to 1926
W. continues to 1953

¥ Sons Pty bLtd.
19539 Geemlong and Cressy Trading Co.
192467 Wright Stephenson

Tyner

&b

&

Co Ltd.

continue to 192957

continues to

1964



AFFENDIX C

Letter from Mer C.W. Mash, 7 Hacket Rd. Werribee, 2.2.1987

"I was interested in yvour article in Western Times concerning
chaftf-mills in the west. Aafter World War 2 I began a business as
a cartage contractor gspecializing in the cartage of sheaf hay
from farms to chaff-mills. In that time L knew all the mills
operating. Theay were Geelong Cressy Trading at Lara. (E.C.
Rabertson, F.H. Oldis and Thompson Bros at Werribee) (Ward’'s and
what later became Trethowans at Melton) Farwan and Rockbank had
already gone. Thers was a mill at Sydenham called Sydenham Mill
at MNewmarket, there was a miil owned by a Mr. Jack Dalwitz, he
wsed gquite a lot of hay to make straw beer bottle covers.

The largest mill of all was run by a Mr. John Schutt and a Me.
Walter Barrie a farmer from Melton. Mr Rarrie wag killed in an
accident on the Ballarat Road. I carted hay for this mill for

well over 20 yvears. Fro Barerie’'s sons E.W. Barrie, C.E. Barrie and
JeLe Barrie were farmers at Melton and were long time friends of
ming. Only J.L. Barrie is still alive and lives on Ferris Road

Mel tor. The manager of Schutt’'s mill was Bill Walters, the foreman
was Bill Scott. The men who worked the mill were ftough old blokes
who spent most of their working lives there. I doubt if many of
themn would be left., They were much older than me and I am 73. A
Mister fes Brown who lives at 3% Benjamine St. Sunshine worked

for many years in the mill could ftell you quite a bit about
Schutt s mill.

M Jack Dalwitz of Newmarket mill lives at Brewster 5t. Essendon.
Hig mill rlosed down when the breweries started bhacking the beer
in cartons. Oldis mill at Wetrribee was taken over by Thompson
Erothers. E.UC. Robertson opsrated as a grain mill after the chaff
gave out. I used to cart hay from as close as S5t. Albans, Deer
Fark and Truganina and as far as Inverleigh, Ballarat and
Trentham., The main reason for the mills fading out was loss of
local hay, once thes bulk silos were built the farmers changed to
grain. The only mill I knew of at Agcot Vale in my time was in a
very small way. I don’'t know if any ot this information is of use
to you but gowod luck and excuse writing and spelling.

({signed) T.W. Nash




. APFENDIX D

‘Working at Trethnwan‘s chaff-mill, Melton 1933-4.° j

By Albert Evans of EBEraybrook, June 1986.
Held in Living Museum of the Wast Resource Centre.

‘'When it was Ebbot and Robinson I worked there for 18 months. The
elevator that was shown on the slide was just inside the door on

the west side that was the entrance for the railway trucks to be
unloaded that took the hay up %o the other end of the steamer so

they could mix the hay with the local hay that came on the trucks

from other parts of the country was very soft fiuffy straw. The

idea was to mix the local hay with it to build up the quality

because the local hay was of a very hard texture and could not be
matched with anvthing elsewhere, so it is a shame nothing can be _
done to aveoid this good land being built on and leaving the } _________
poorer land to be left for cropping. :

The land south of the Calder Highway to the sea is the best land

for grazing and cropping and up to Ballan to the west. Harry

Robinson was the Hay Buyer and his two brothers worked in the

mill. The team were Stan Robinson, Doug Robinson, Jack Fearcy, :
Harry Allen, EBill Hirt, Norm Hurley, Stan Arthur, Arch McDonald, %
Fupert Tinkler, Albert Evans. The Union you worked under was the

Fuel and Fodder. The wages were six pound ten shillings a week.

The tax out of that was eighteen shillings, leaving five pound

twelve ghillings. When they wanted extra labour they called on

Harery Minn‘s thiree sons Tom, Fred, Alex.

The working hours were 7.3530 AM until S.00 PM with 40 minutes of+f
for lunch. Tom was the last baby delivered by Hannah Jane Watts,
in her private hospital.

The two large bins in the middle of the building held 16 ton of
chat++f when full. Towards the evening they turn the chaf+ into
this bin and use the bag sewers to rope down the trucks. Some
days there would be four, some three. The large trucks which they
called sixteen tonners would hold 210 bags and the smaller trucks
140 bags. There were always two men bagging and when they had the
bins full they speed up the chaff from the bin and put four men
on. Buess who was the fourth? Me. The east end entrance was for
the local motor tramsport. There was a council weighbridge on
Station Road a few yards north of the entrance to Ward’'s mill.
The farmers weighed their loads here, but Ward's mill and the

weighbridge no longer exist.
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AFPFENDIX E

L] S

Letter +rom Dorothea J. Whitford ot Brown Hill, 25.2.1987.

‘Livinmg Museun of the West.

Dear Sie or Madam,
I have Jjust read the “"Western Times" of Feb.

4th ‘87 and the request for memories of chatf-mills in Footscray.
i worked in the office ot Schutt and Barrie +rom Sept. 17946 to
June 1¥50.

Mr. J. FR. Bochutt was Managing Director and although an old man
ztill worked in the office every day. Each afternoon he put
cveralles on and went out:into the mill to have a look around and
speak o the men.

William (Bill) Walters was the manager and he o+tten donned
overalls and worked with the men, i1if someone was absent or 14
therse was a rush to wunlioad or load a truck or waggon.

Charles (Charlie) Witters {who was a J.F.) was the traveller and
he travelled by train and called on the different customers all
around Melbourne and as far as Lilvdale, taking orders or
collecting accounts or jJjust paving a friendly visit.

Heorge Ouine was the hay buyer and he had a car and would call on
the farmers, mostly in the Rockbarnk-Melton district, Farwan-—
Toolern Vale, have a cup of tea and & chat and see how the crop
was going and then report it back to the office. When it was
ireadyy, mostly 1t was prime oaten or prime wheaten, he would offer
50 much a ton or Bill Walters would phone up and offer the price.
Sometimas it was carited straight out of the paddock, that price
would be ‘on the ground’ sometimes loose or sheaf.

l.ots of it was ‘stacked’ probably with the idea that the price
would be higher later in the year. Gearge could estimate how many
tons of hay would be in'a stack by looking at it. Robert (Rob)
Moore also did some buying, mostly in the Inverleigh-Winchelsea

district.

M. McEwvoy (I think Jim) drove the trucks, one tray and one semi.
At busy times Reg Yearing drove a truck owned by Mr J. McMaster
and Mr. Robinzson (I think George) who had his own truck would

also cart in for them.

Sehutt and Barrie had their own weighbridge on the service road
on Geelong Rosd, and everything was weighed there. Outsiders were
also welcoms to use it for a small fee.

Schutt and Barrie were famous far their prime guality "Green
Sering" chat+t.

Ken Mathieson was the storeman and he weighed every bag of chat+
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and wrote the weight on a ticket and handed it into the window of
the office. For each sale tHe weight had to be worked out at so

. muech per ton to arrive at the price of one bag. For a truck-load
of course 1t was put over the weighbridge and worked out in

total.

I can remember odd times & load of hay would come in and it would
be steaming and therse would be a real panic to get it off

quickly and spread it before it ignited and burst into flames.
They had a good sprinkler system (Wormald Brothers) installed
throughout the building, which were very old and quite a number
of times something set the sprinkler and alarm off accidently.
Sometimes it was caused by a truck with a very high load of hay
hitting it. Anyway the Fire HBrigade would arrive and then see it
was a false alarm and turn the siren off and the water etc.

The hay was loaded and unloaded with pitch~forks. & bag of chaff
was carried on the back and stacked or loaded using a bag hool to
lift it with (like a handle).

To load a truck or waggon they had a lane with the floor of the
loft over it with a trap—-deor and they dropped the bags of chaff
down onto the tray and the driver would stack i1t. Nearly all the
deliveries were done by E. Richards, cartage contractors of
Earkley Streest, who were always available.

There was only one serious accident in the time I worked there
when Reg Yearing fell down the pit (I'm not sure what it was used
for). He suffered very serious head injuries and I can remember
very clearly Bill Walters rushing into the office and ringing for
the ambulance and then driving to Reg’'s home in Ballarat Road o
get his wife (who was very pregnant at the time) and taking her to
the hospital in Melbourne (Footscray wasn’'t open then). After

some months he returned to work, not quite as good as he was
before.

Minor injuries such as cuts, fork in the foot, foriegn substance
in the eye were either treated at the office or maybe driven to a
doctor.

Miss Minnie Reynolds was head of the staff and there were Miss
Jessica Campbell, M., Dick Wiltshire, Athol Lyall (who later went
to Olympic Cables), tMrs. Rhook, Hazel Holst, Ralph J. Schutt was
Manager of the flour mill but at this time you are asking about
chaff-mills. Arthur the other son was not in the business and he
was the founder of Schutt Aviation in Moorabin and formerly
Essendon.

The one dawughter Min, lived at home with her parents in the
lovely two-storey house in Geelong Road, just west of Droop
Street. '

Some of the employees not mentioned were:

Jack Burgess and son Eill
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Brown brothers, Bert and Norm (I think?
Jack Finlayson
George Adams

Some of the farmers who grew the hay:s

Hugh Barrie Melton 3 These were sons of the Barries
Bonnie Harrig Melton that went with Bchutt.
Jack and George Harrison —-Rockbank

Ernie Missen ~Rockbank (I think)
Ernie Robinson —Toolern VYale "

Jack Robinson . ~Meltan .

Jim Trethowan ~Melton "

Pon and Jack fMyers -truaganinni "

Fred Minns - ~Melton '
McCorball -Mt Wallace 1
Everard ~Inverleigh "

Some of the Customers 1 remember:

Tommy Galt Froduce Merchant Gordon Street
Fred Menadus " " Barkley Street
George Sath

NMeville and Brian Horse trainers Brooklyn (I think)
Miss Irwving KWaverly Riding School
W. Harris % Son Froduce Merchant MNewmarket
W. Berger % Sons " ! Flemington
E.J. Moulton " " Morth Melbourne
W.J. Enticott " ! Dandenong
Euigoine Bros.
Mr. Rooney Storekeeper Braybrook

Second-hand bags and =sacks were sold to:

Waiter Cant Carlton
“. Maggs Rirngwood

I don’' % know 14 I've told vou anything vou really wanted to know
but these are my memories of a happy time spent working for a

very kind amd genercous gentleman— Mr J. R. Schutt.

Yours sincerely,
{(signed) Dorothea J. Whitford.’

7i




NOTES AND REFERENCES

By

1. ‘The feeding of farm horses’ Farmers Bulletin No. &4 from
Agricultural Gazzette of New SBouth Wales, Oct. 121&d.. pers.
comm., J.V. Farrow 13.2.1987

2 Woodru++4, H.A. The Economice of Feeding Horses Balliere,

“ .

Tindal and Cox, London, 1212,

A Cha++ and Stock Feed Act 1709, Victorian Farliamentary
Debates, vol. 120 1909 p. 220,

4, Recorded interview with Leo Tarleton, &6.2.87 LMW

5. Recorded interview with Leo Tarleton, 6.2.87 LMW

& Fersonal communication Roy Davis, 29.1.19B87

7. Fecorded interview with.Leo Tarleton, 2287 LMK

8. Letter from C.W. Nash 2.2.87 %o Living Museum of the West.

. Starr, J. Melton Flains of Fromise Melton Shire Council,
n.d. p.217.

10, Letter from C.W. Nash 2.2.87

11. Recorded interview with Jack Findlater, 5.2.87 LMW
12, Recorded interview with Leo Tarleton, &6.2.87 LMW
1%. Recorded interview with Jack Findlater, 5.2.87 LMW
14, Recorded interview with Jack Findlater, 5.2.87 LMW
15. FRecorded interview with Jack Findlater, 5.2.87 LMW
l6. Recorded interview with Jack Findlater, 5.2.87 LMW
17. Recorded interview with Leo Tarleton, 5;2.87 LMW
18. Fersonal communication, Hec Mclvor 4.2.1987

i%. Recorded interview with Jack Findlater, S5.2.87 LMW
=0, Recorded interview with Jack Findlater, 5.2.87 LMW

21, FRecorded interview with Jack Findlater, S5.2Z.87 LMN‘

22 Chaff—-cutters, Frotection of Workers Bill, Victorian

)

Farliamentary Debates 1909, vol. 120G, pp.25Q, 277.

2% Fersonal communication, Mr Ron Robinson of Boundary Reoad

et

Derrimut 11.2.87.



Z24. FPersonal communication Koy Davis, 29.1.1987

e Letter from C.W. Nash 9.2.87

ib.  Recorded interview with Leo Tarleton, &.2.87 LKW

27 Fersonal communication. J.V. Farrow 13.2.1987

28. FRecorded interview with Mathew Matich, 4.2.1987

259, Recorded interview with Jack Findlater, S5.2.87 LMW

. Tim Shea, in Bacechus PMarsh by Bacchus PMarsh: an anecdotal

histary compiled by Beoffrey Camm, Shire of Bacchus Marsh: 1984,

(=R T

Si. GStastistical Register of Victoria [F01-1%911; W. Williams, A

Histary of Bacchus Marsh pp.Z2-3.

AE Recorded interview with Lea Tarleton, &.2.87 LMW
Ei.  Recorded interview with Jack Findlater, S9.32.87 LMW
4, Recorded interview with Leo Tarieton, &.2.87 LMW
A Fersonal communication Koy Davis, £%.1.1%87

I6. Recorded interview with Leo Tarleton, &6.2.87 LW

37 . Feel, L..J. Rural Industry in the Fort Fhillip District 1B3IS-—-
1880 Melbouwrne 1974,

I8, Weekly Times Bupplement 9.%.1905, p.lZ (Roval Melbourne
Agricuitural Show report.d

Z%. Fard, 0. Rural activity in Pelbourne’'s Weest, in Melbourne’'s
Western Region, An Introductory History Melbourne's Living Museum
ot the West, Melbourne Western Region Cultural Heritage Study,

19863 Murray, H.E. The plains of Irtrampoo, Wertibee 1974, p.54,

400, Statistical Register of Victoria 19011911,

41. Footscray’'s First Hupdred Years., City of Footscray, 1939,
p.lB4&.

4%. Recorded interview with Leo Tarleton, &.2.87 LMW
4%, Recorded interview with Leo Tarleton, 6.2.87 LMW
44, Letter from C.W. MNash 9.2.87

4%,  Trethowan, F. ‘Technology and Work , unpublished paper presented
as part of Australian History Course at Melbourne CAE. August
1984.




..46. Trethowan, F. ‘Technology and Work', unpublished paper presented |
as part of Australian History Course at Melbourne CAE. August

1984.

47. Starr, J. Melton FPlains of Fromige Melton Shire Council,
n.d. p.230,.

48. Recorded interview with Leo Tarleton, &.2.87 LMW
49. Recorded interview with Leo Tarleton, &.2.87 LMW

50. VMictorian commetrcial and Fost Office Directories, including
Sands and McDousal, Wise’'s, Balliere’'s, estec. have been
extensively relied upon for details of chatt-mills and chaf+-mill
Dwners,

o 51. . (The relevant Act is the Companies’ Act of 1892 which
required the registration of companies and the keeping of an
official record. Hence the large number of companies registered
around 18%93-4. Many of these were already operating for some time
before their oftficial registration.

aryei Defunct Business File 933/1/124 Victorian Fublic Records
Office

9%.  Fersonal communication, Leo Tarleton, 12.2.1987
54. Personal communication, J. H. Steele 5.2.1987
55. Fersonal communication, Hec Moclvor 4.2.1987

J6. Footscravy’'s Eirst Hundred Years., City of Footscray, 17959,
p.lB86.

7. Lists of dismantled private sidings, No. B, Schutt and
Bartrie, held by Bidings Administration Section,; V Line Melbourne.

8. Footscray's First Hundred Years., City of Footscray, 1959,
p. 1B&.

2%. Recorded interview with Jack Findlater, 5.2.87 LMW
60, Recorded interview with Jack Findlater, 35.2.87 LMW
&1. Recorded interview with Jack Findlater, 5.2.87 LMW

6H2. (8ite Inspection, G.V. 15.12.86.) also Department of Weights
and Measures records, Birdwood Avenue South Yarra.

F. Defunct Business File 232/1186%, Victorian Fublic Records
Office

&4. Defunct Business File 932/11843, Victorian Fublic Records
Oftice

74



-y

65. Detfunct Business File, 932/4772, Victorian Fublic Records
Uftice.

&6, Gtare, J. Melton Flains of Fromise Melton Shire Council,
n.d. and bteo Tarleton, ‘Summary 0f chaftf-mills in the Melton area,
held by LHW.: Fersonal Communication, Ron Cameron, 4.73.1987.

&7, Recorded interview with Jack Findlater, 9.2.87 LMW: Lists of
dismantled private sidings, Mo. 1&6A, Diggers Rest, held by
Sidings Administration:Section, V Line Melbourne.

68, Defunct Business Fille, 932/11863, Victorian Fublic Records
Ofticey Starr, J. Melton Flains of Fromise Melton Shire Council,
n.d. and Leo Tarleton,, ~'Summary of chatf-mills in the Melton
area’, held by LMW.

6%,  Starr, J. Melton flains of Fromise Melton Shire Council,
n.d. and Leo Tarleton, ‘Summary of chaff-mills in the Melton area,
helad by LME.

O, Fersonal communication, Ron Cameron, 7.2.1987

71. Lists of dismantled private sidings, No. 132, Farwan, held
by Bidings Administration Secticon, V Line Melbouwrne.

T Mootre, 6. and Oomes, J. Bacchus Marsh: A Fictorial Chronicgle
Bacchus Marsh and District Historical Saciety, p. 145,

7oA. l.ists of dismantled private sidings, No. 134, Fearce, held
tty Sidings Administration Section, V Line Melbourne.

V4.  Tim Shae, in Bagchus Marsh by Hacchus Marsh: an anecdotal
history compiled by GBeoffrey Camm, Shire of Bacchus Marsh, 1984,
Po 9.

T, Defunct Business File 933/32/534&, Victorian Fublic Records
Office.

Pa=N Defunct Business File R35/3/534, Victorian Fublic Records
Office.

77 Lists of dismantled private sidings, No. 134, Fearce, held
by Sidings Administration Section, V Line Melbourney Moore, G.
arnd OQomes, J- Bagchus Marsh: A Fictorial Cronicle Bacchus Marsh
and District Historical Society, p. 143.

78. Jovee Lane, Eddie Toole, Lucy Light, in Bacchus Matsh by
Bacchus Marsh: an anecdotal history compiletd by Geoffrey Camm,

Shire of Bacchus Marsh, 1984, pp. 25-8, 144, 350.

FATR Lists of dismantled private sidings, MNo.133, Andrews, held
by Sidings &dministration Section, V Line Melbourne.

2840, Starr, J. PMelton Flains of Fromise Melton 8hire Council,

~J
&




n.d. and Leo Tarleton, ‘Summary of chaff-mills in %he Meltqn area,

13

held by LMW.

B1. Starr, J. Melton Flaipns pof Fromise Melton Shire Council,
n.d. and Leo Tarleton, ‘Summary of chaff-mills in the Melton area,
held by LMW, .

o

2 Recorded interview with bL=o Tarleton, &.2.87 LMW

8%, Lists of dismantled private sidings, No. 130, Ward, held by
Sidings Administration Section, V Line Melbourne.

84. Starr, J. Melton Flains of Fromise Melton Shire Council,
n.d. and Leo Tarleton, ‘Summary of chaff-mills in the Melton area,

held by LMW.

8%. Recorded interview with Leo Tarleton, 6£.2.87 LMW
8&. FRecorded interview with Leo Tarleton, 2,87 LMW
B7. Recorded interview with Lea Tarleton, &6.2.87 LMW

88. Lists of dismantled private sidings, No. 130, Ward, held by
Sidings Administration Section, VY Line Melbourne.

87. FRecorded interview with Leo Tarleton, &.2.87 LMW Stare, J.
Melton Flains of Promise Melton Shire Council, n.d.

70. Starr, J. Melton Flains of Fromise Melton Shire Council, n.d.
p.217.

?1. Recorded interview with Jack Findlater, S.2.87 LMW

2. Lists of dismantled private sidings, Indexes, held by
Eidings Administration Section, V Line Melbourne.

Z. Btarr, J. Melton Plains of Fromise Melton Bhire Council,
n.d. and Leo Tarleteon, ‘Summary of chaff-mills in the Melton area,

held by LMW,

74. Lists of dismantled private sidings, No. 128, Ward, held by
Sidings Administration Section, V¥ Line Melboutne.

75. Defunct Business File 9ZZ2/1/2, Victorian Fublic Records
Office.

?H4. Lists of dismantled ptivate sidings, No. 129, Cockbill, held
by Bidings Administration Section, V Line Melbourne.

%7. Defunct Business File, 933/44/14204, Victorian Fublic
Records Office.

78. Starr, J. Melton Flains of Fromise Melton Shire Council,
n.d. and Leo Tarleton, ‘Bummary of chaff-mills in the Melton area,

held by LMW,

76



9. Lizsts of dismantled private sidings, No. 131, Ebbott Eebby, ;
held by Sidings Administration Section, V Line Melbourne.

100. Starr, J. Melton Flains gf Fromise Flelton Shire Council, ]
n.d. p.221 {(photo of workers on construction of Dixon's Cha+f Mill '
supplied by Taom Collins who worked in the mill as a bricklayer.)

131, Starr, J. Melton Flains gf Fromise Melton Shire Council, |
n.d. p.217.

102, Recorded interview with Leo Tarleton, &.2.87 LMW

1030 Lists of dismantled private sidings, dNo. 131, Ebboit Kebby,
held by 3idings Administration Section, V Line Melbourns.

104, Defunct Business File, F3I52/9226, Victorian Fublic Records
Office. \ L

12353, Terethowan, . ‘Technology and Work 'y unpublished paper
presented as part of Australian History Course at Melbourne CAE.
August 19B&.

194&. Recorded interview with Leo Tarleton, &.2.87 LMW

107, Fersonal communication, Mr Ron Robinson of Boundary Road
Derrimut 11.2.87.

108. Recorded interview with bLeo Tarieten, &.2.87 LMW ' ;

149, Defunct Business File, 9IZ/85606, Victarian Fublic
Records Office.

110. Recorded interview with Leo Tarleton, &.2.87 LMW

111. Starr, J. Melton Flains of FPromise Melton Bhire Council,

n.d. and Leo Tarleton, 'Summary of chatf-mills in the Melton area,
held by LMW. Lists of dismantled private sidings. ho. 1lé,
Sydenham, held by Eidings Administration Section, V Line
Melbourne.

1120 Murray, H.E. The plains of Irtamoo, Werribee 1274, p.70
p.120-513 also recorded in Werribee Ranner 6.11.03

113.’James, Bro M. werribee; The First UOne Hundred Years Werribee
District Historical Society, 1983. pp.l136-B.

114. Murray, H.E. The plains of irramocc, Werribee 1974, p.70

119. Personal communication, Mr Ron Robinson of RBoundary Road Derwimut;
1i1.2.87. letter from C.W. Nash 2.2.87

iis. Lists of dismantled private sidings, MNo. 94, Robertson, held
by Sidings Administration Section, V Line Melbourne.

77




117. SBee note =1. . )

118. Defunct Business File, 933/1/11i8, Victnrianqﬁublic Records
Office.

119. Fersonal communication, Mr Ron Robinson of Boundaty Road ‘
Derrimut 11.2.87. ‘

120, James, K.N. Werribee, The First One Hundred Yesars Wertibee E
District Historical Society, 1985, p.&0. ‘

1i21i. letter from C.W. Nash 9.2.87

22. Defunct Business File, 933/24/7419, Victorian Fublic Records

aa W

Office.

12%. Murray, H.E. The plaing of Irtamoo, Werribee 1974.

124. Btarr, J. Melton Flains pf Fromise Melton Shire Council,
n.d. p.221. (Fhotograph shows a Ransom, SBimms ang Jeffries
threshing machine and not a chaff—-cutter as the caption claims.
The threshing teams, which also travelled from farm to farm may
also have done chaff-cutting.?

125. 8tarr, J. PMelton Plains of Fromise Melton Shire Council,
N.d. p.217.

126. Recorded interview with Leo Tarleton, &.2.87 me
127. Recorded interview with Leo Tarleton, 6.2.87 LMW
128. Fersonal communication, Bernie Trethowan, 9.2.1987. : i

129. Btarr, J. Melfon Flains of Fromise Melton Shire Council,
n.d. and Leo Tarleton, ‘Summary of chaff-mills in the Melton area,
held by LMW.

130. Personal communication, unidentified V Line emplovee,
14.1.1987

121. Moore, G. and Oomes, J. Bacehus PMarsh: A Fictorial Chronicle
HBacchus Marsh and District Historical Society, p.72

Z2,. Lists of dismantled private sidings, No. 132, Fearce, held

[ pry |

by Sidings Administration Section, V Line Melbourna.

i33%. Moore, G. and Oomes, J. Bacchus Marsh: A Pictorial Chronicle
Bacchus Marsh and District Historical Society, p.72

174, Lists of dismantled private sidings held by Sidings
Administration Section, V¥ Line Melbourne.

78



SOURCES

Directories

Fort Fhillip Directory 1847-6&.

Sands and McDougal Melbourng and Suburban Pirectories 1B59-1901.

Sands and McDouwgal Yictorian Directories 1902-1970.

Wise's Commercial Directorigs, 1849-70.

Victorian Fost Office Directories 1H&4B~1960.

Melbouwrne Telephone Directories 1940-19287.

Mewspapers

The Express (Melton) 8 December 1977, p.l

Footscray Advertiser 24 March 1883, p.2

The Leader, 13 February, 1719.

Weekly Times Supplement 2.9.1905, F.1Z (Royal HMelbourne
Agricultural Show report.)

Westarn News B July i1i986.

Recarded Interviews (conducted by Gary Vines, tapes held by
Melbourne’'s Living Museum of The West Inc.)

Mathew Matich, Footscray, 4.2.1287

Lea & Val Tarletaon, Rockbank, &.2.87

Jack Findlater, Footscray, S.2.87

Roy Davis, Werribee, Z7.1.1%987 {(notes only!}

Unrecorded Fersonal Communication
Mrs. B. Walters, Maidstone.
‘Bill Phelps, Altona,

Hec Mclivory, Footscray,

77




Marg Tanti,

Mis.

J.H.

Eernie Trethowan,
Ron Robinson,
Ron Cameron,

Don Dawson,

Bteele,

N. Thompson,

Ewan McFherson,

Sunshineg,

Werribee,

Williamstown,

Melton,

Truganina,
sunshine,
Essendon,

itcham,

Letters. (copies kept by Living PMuseum of the West Inc.)

C.W. Nash,
Mrrs Dorothea J. Whitford,

Albert Evans,

Werribee,

EBraybrook,

?.2. 1987

Erown H

June 198

Corpeorate Affairs Files

Defunct
Offtice.

Defunct
Defunct

Defunct
Df+ice.

Defunct
Defunct
Defunct
De+unet

Defunct

Business

File,

il1,

1)

25.2.1987

9ZZ/1/118, Victorian Fublic Records

Business File, 932/8606, Victorian Fublic Records Office.

Business

Business

Business

Business

Business

Business

Business

File 933/1/2, Vi

File,

File, 932/9226,
File 933/3/536,
File, 9%2/477%2,
File 932/1186%3,

File 933/71/124,

a0

ctorian

Victorian

Victorian

Victorian

Victorian

Victorian

qulic
Fublic
Fublic
Fublic

Fublic

Records

Records

Records

Records

Records

Fublic Records Office.

23744714204, Victorian Public Records

Office.

Office.

Dffice.

Office.

Office.



Secondary Sources

Bacchus Marsh by Bacchus Marsh:s an anecdpgial history compiled by
GBeotfrey Camm, Shire of Racchus Marsh, 1984,

Cyick, C. % B. 'Blowhard Chaff-mill’, in Mortillo: A Short
History of Mt. Blowhard, Mt Elowhard Centenary Committes, 1978.

‘The feeding of farm horses’, Farmers Bulletin No. &4 from
fgricultural Gazette of New South Wales, Oct. 1912,

Footscray's First Hundred Years., City of Footscray, 1939.

Ford, 0. 'Rural activity in Melbourne’'s West', in Meibourne’'s
Western Kegion, An Introdugtory History Melbourne’'s Living HMuseum
D+ the West, Melbourne Western Region Cultural Heritage Study,
1986, ‘

Goldern Jubilee, 1923-1973, Melton South Frimary Schoocl, 17773,

James, E.MN. Werribee, The Firet One Hundred Years The
Wer+ibee District Historical Society, 1(9B5.

McDonald, J. ‘Some hints on the preparation of chaftft’y in
fporicultural Gazette of New South Wales, January 1%10.

Mpore, G. and Oomes, J. Bacchus Marsh, & Pictorial Chronicle
RBacchus FMarsh and District Historical Society.

Murtay, H.E. The plains of lrramoo, Werribee, 1974.

Feel, L.J. Rural Industry in fthe Fort Fhillip District 1835-1HE0
Melbourne 1974.

Starr, J. Melton Flains of Fromise Melton Shire Council,
n.d.

W. Williams, A Historv of EBacchus Marsh, Bacchus Marsh Express,
c. 1236,

Woodruff, H.H. The Economics of Feeding Horses Balliere,
Tindal and Cow, London, 1712.

Farliamentary Fublications

Chaff-cutters, Frotection of Workers Rill, VYictorian
Farliamentary Debates 1909, vol. 124, pp.2530, Z77.

Cha++4 and Stock Food Act 1207, Victorian Farliamentary
Lebates vol. 120 1909 p. 220,

Btastistical Register of Victgria 1901-1911;

81




Unpubl ished Sources

Trethowan, F. 'Technoleogy and Work’ ', wunpublished paper presented
as part of Australian History Course at Melbourne CAE. August

19846,

Tarleton, Leo. ‘NMotes on chatf-mills in the Melton district’,
Melton, 1985,

Lists and plans of dismantled private sidings held by Eidings
Administration Section, V Line HMelbourne.

Indexes

g Footscray West

16 Sydenham

‘14a Diggers Rest

24 HWerribee

128 Rockbank, Ward

129 Rockbank, Cockbill
120 Melton, Ward

1%1 Melton, Ebbott kKebby
122 Parwan

1Z% Hacchus HMarsh, Andrews
1Z4 Bacchus Marsh, Fearce



List of Photographs

Photographs taken for Melbourne’'s Living Museum of the West to
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v the mills was hot, dusty, noisy,
angerous. The hours at Schutt and
m. Monday to Friday and 7.30 a.m. to
tra hours might have to be put in to
ourself by watching and giving a hand.
and many spent their whole working
nade from cleaning up to feeding the
ntenance or even foreman.

s to put it in steam chambers to give it
fedinto the cutters. These comprised
ives and a set of toothed roliers which

n to the riddles which separated the
’ or badly-cut pieces of straw. Next it
g with other types of chaff. Screw and
nd chaff between the various stages of

RY: ~The bigusers of chaff were the
dairies, breweries and other delivery
metimes much of the production was
1rplus being sent to Melbourne.

feed were established in what is today
urne and produced chaff as part of a
the chaff-cutters and other stock-feed
lemington, North Melbourne and the

s established in what has become the
was Wiliam Eastwood’s mill in South

s were operating in the region in the
avelled from farm to farm and cut chaff
the men’s wages. Three are known to
rkness mobile chaff mill and Barrie’s
elton area and about 1918, E.J. Greig
nk. Mobile chaff-cutters were mantt-
lbourne companies, John Buncle, and

In the first four decades of this century, hay was the fuel of the transport
industry and like the ‘Oil Crisis’ of the 19705 we had the ‘Chalff Crisis’ of the
late 1900s. Supply dwindled due to drought, the price of hay and chaff shot
up and disreputable dealers tried to stretch their supplies by mixing straw
and other matter, with the little good hay chaff they could get, The ensuing
scandal got to Parliament and the Victorian Government was forced to
legislate to protect the supplies of fodder to Melbourne.

By 1925 there were at least 13 chaff-mills in the region which were doing
good business and expanding to satisfy a high demand.

Schutt and Barrie moved across Geelong Road in 1917 to build a larger
mill and have better access to the raifway. Ebbott Kebby, who had acquired
Dixon’s mill in Melton, added on extra bays to their building and Pearce
enlarged the Bacchus Marsh mill.

Retween 1939 and 1945 no grain at all was grown in the Melton area due
10 the very strong demand for chaff created by the war. Some horses were
still used by the army, but the shortage of motor fuel resulted in the retention
of horse drawn vehicles and farm horses.

DECLINE:  From 1946 to 1950 hay was slowly replaced by grain as the
major crop, as the demand for hay declined. The post-war years were also a
time of labour shortages which areatly affected the very labour intensive
harvesting of hay. One man could operate a grain header and bulk handling
made grain growing even more labour-efficient, but hay still required many
hands for stooking and stacking.

Other developments which further reduced the viability of the chaff-mills
were the invention of the baler and hammermill, (giving farmers a cheaper
alternative to chaff for feeding their cows), and the introduction of horse
peliets and other processed feeds for horses.

Fires claimed some of the chaff-mills and with the depressed market at
the ime it was not financially viable to reconstruct them. The Diggers Rest
mill burned down in 1939 leaving its operators, the Robinson brothers, to
abandon their partnership with Schutt and Barrie and move to Melton. This
mill aiso burned down in 1977-when it was owned by HS.K. Ward.

The demand for chaff has picked up in the last seven to ten years partly
due to the growth of racing and trotting studs in the Melton area, pony clubs
and a popular fashion among residents of the outer suburbs of Melbourne to
keep horses as pets.

Further information: Chaff-Mills in Melbourne’s West, Report by Gary
Vines for Meibourne’s Living Museum of the West, 1987,

PHOTO: CONRTESY MRS, WALTERS
e ; )

Produced by Gary Vines for

MELBOURNE'S LIVING MUSEUM OF THE WEST.

Project funded by the Ministry for Conservation, Forests and Lands, 1987,
Enquiries: 14 David Street, Footscray, 3011. Phone: 689 7293.
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LOCATION OF CHAFF-MILLS
1. Schutt & Bayrie 1513
2. Schutt & Barrie 1917
3. Gilmour/Barwise 1887
4. Crinnion Bros. 1887
5. Frazer & Thomas 1887
6. Bullen & Moss 1520
7. Austral Grain & Produce 1910
Bacchus Marsh has had at least four chaff-mills at one time or another. Pearce Brothers — 8. Barrie/Ward 1500
grocers, produce merchants, farmers, chicory processors, car dealers and chafemillers — 9. Cockbil 1920
had an interest in three of them. Their first mill was in Church Street from 1886 and was 10. Trethowan 1910
moved to Maddingley in 1908, where part of the original building survives on Maddingley 11. Barrie/Ward 1902
Brown Coal land. MEL: 219 G5. 12. Austral Gran & Produce 1908
The fourth mill was at Parwan, constructed by Austral Grain and Produce. Teday little ;31 Eearze g;g: i%g
; ; . ; : : . . Pearce \
remains except a derelict house; even ﬁhe station was demolishedin 1986, MEL: 220G11. 5. Avclows/F C. Pearce 1889
16. E.C. Robettson 1904
17. Isory Thompson 1903
18. Newton Nicholson 1910
NAY i
WESTEP\N - T ; . ' . . . Sydenham had a chaff-mill frorn the 1900s to late 19705,7(0\,med by several companies
e Still cutting cha.ff for the racing, s{u@ and pet horges, Trethowan’s in Meltgn survived as D Syd enham  including Slaney, who operated under the name of Bullen & Moss from about 1995 to
Melton ihe ia{?t C}?H'Lnﬁ.l T the regtlon ‘l’_llntl]l;t burntdownin ltVIarch 3287'C§tip?;ng m&defr Ts,il.ﬂge A < 1950. Today a garden supply depot is on the site but the concrete floor and siding can be
’ - Tavelng bacs Sy ears 1o wWher horses were our lransport ana chalt was our tuel, 1he g ° . .~ seen, helping us to imagne the scene as if was in the past.  MEL.; 3 DI
10 @ @ 11 ﬂn}a&hlrll?gykglth its noise and clutter, presented a view of an almost vanished industry, — )

X

Footscray

p @ -1

TPHOTO: COURTESY MR. RON CAMERON

Chaff-mills in Melbourne’s west were sited to take advantage of the quality hay arown in
the region and the cheap and efficient transport provided by the railways. They nearly all
had sidings and were nearby stations. From the map you can see how they were spread
out along the Bendigo, Ballarat and Geelong lines with some closer to Melbourne, but still
near railways. [n this way they were close to the source of good hay and had the means to
send chalf to Melbourne, all over the state and even interstate and overseas.
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' @ CHAFF-MILL Just to the west of the Sunshine and Geelong Roads overpass is Schutt and Barrie’s

weighbridge {still in use). Opposite, the carpark marlks the site of their chaff-mill, built
over a small quarry, and across Sunshine Road are the railway sidings which once came
right into the mill. All that remains of Melbourne’s biggest chaff-mill. MFEL: 41K5.
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